
Members of the public who are disabled and require special accommodations or assistance at the
meeting are requested to notify the City ofElko Planning Depa ment, 1751College Avenue, Elko,
Nevada, 89801 or by calling (775) 777-7160.

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

Dated this 19th day of January, 2018.

The public may contact Shelby Archuleta by phone at (775) 777-7160 or by email at
sarchuleta@elkocitynv.gov to request supporting material for the meeting described herein. The
agenda and supporting material is also available at Elko City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko,
NV.

ELKO POLICE DEPARTMENT - 1448 Silver Street, Elko NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: January 19,2018 2:15 p.m.

ELKO COUNTY LIBRARY - 720 Court Street, Elko, NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: January 19, 2018 2:05 p.m.

ELKO COUNTY COURTHOUSE - 571 Idaho Street, Street, Elko, NV 89801
Date/Time Posted: January 19,2018 2:10 p.m.

2:00 p.m.
ELKO CITY HALL - 1751 College Avenue, Elko, NV 89801

Date/Time Posted: January 19,2018

Attached with this notice is the agenda for said meeting of the Advisory Council. In accordance
with NRS 241.020, the public notice and agenda were posted on the City of Elko Website at
http://www.elkocitynv.gov/, the State of Nevada's Public Notice Website at https://notice.nv.gov,
and in the following locations:

The City of Elko Redevelopment Advisory Council will meet in a regular session on Thursday,
January 25, 2018 in the Council Chambers at City Hall, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, Nevada,
beginning at 4:00 P.M., P.S.T.

PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE

1751College Avenue· Elko, Nevada 89801 . (775) 777-7160 . Fax (775) 777-7219

Website: www.elkocitynv.gov
Email: planning@elkocitynv.gov

CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department



B. Budget - Cathy Laughlin

A. Storefront Improvement Program

II. REPORTS

C. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to the Redevelopment Agency on
Centennial Park final design concept and consideration of additional funding to complete
Centennial Park expansion, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

B. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to the Redevelopment Agency on
the upcoming budget cycle for 2018/19 regarding allocating funds, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

A. Review and consideration for a directional signage program for the Central Business
District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

I. NEW BUSINESS

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion
ofthose comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as
an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLLCALL

The agenda for this meeting of the City of Elko Redevelopment Advisory Council (RAC) has
been properly posted for this date and time in accordance with NRS requirements.

October 26, 2017 - Regular Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

CALL TO ORDER

CITYOFELKO
REDEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
4:00 P.M., P.S.T., THURSDAY, JANUARY 25, 2018

ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA



ADJOURNMENT

)1~:Ubmi~
Scott Wil1![~
Assistant City Manager

NOTE: The Chairman or Vice Chairman reserves the right to change the order of the agenda
and if the agenda is not completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another
specified date and time. Additionally, the Redevelopment Advisory Council reserves
the right to combine two or more agenda items, and/or remove an item from the
agenda, or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and discussion
of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item on the agenda
until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda and identified as
an item for possible action. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

C. Other



Page 1of 16Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting MinutesOctober 26, 2017

August 24,2017 - Special Meeting FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Therewere nopublic comments made at this time.

COMMENTS BY

PLEDGE OF

er
ment Manager

Planning Technician

Absent:

Catherine Wines, ACAB
Jeff Dalling
Jon Karr
Lina Blohm

Present:

NOTE:

The meeting was called to order by Jon Karr, Chairman of the C'
Advisory Council (RAC), at 4:00 p.m.

The order of the Agenda has been ch
conducted.

ROLLCALL

CALL TO ORDER

CITYOFELKO
REDEVELOPMENT ADVISORY COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
4:00 P.M., P.S.T., THURSDAY, OCTOBER 26,2017

ELKO CITY HALL, COUNCIL CHAMBERS,
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA



Ms. Wines pointed out that there are grants available to non-profits for this very thing that are
not available to for profit businesses. They are competitive and sometimes tricky to get. This is
based on property tax and it should be available to people who pay into it.

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, added that they had comments that since they paid
payroll taxes they were taxed entity, even though they didn't contribute to the assessment.

Ms. Laughlin sugges they left it in they would need to define a non-taxed entity, because
that's where it was 10 was in the definition.

it, so should they leave it in.Jon Karr said

, we would be allowing them in, as we did

Jeff Dalling asked .

d" to obtain a Building
~"'I'II'p..I."""'>J document.

to make changes
ent and
Page 1
nt

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, explained that she went
and only made changes to three of the five docum
compare to the changes that the RAC would like
she made a modification to change the "Grant
Agency", because the Redevelopment Agency makes
from the Grant Review Committee. On Page 2 she was
as the Building Permit issued by the Ci Elko, and repl
Participation Agreement. All the Grant had to sign a
all of the Grants were required a building 3 she
non-taxed entities", since there was quite a
Center to apply as it was. On Page 6, in the
Permit. Those were her ges to thtt~'~nt

Page 2 of 16Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting MinutesOctober 26,2017

After the first year of the Storefront Improvement Grant
and application should be reviewed to consider any po

A. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to the Redevelopment Agency to
amend the storefront improvement reimbursement program application package, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

II. NEW BUSINESS
*Motion passed unanimously. (4-0)

*** A motion was made by Lina Blohm, seconded by Catherine Wines, ACAB to approve
the August 24, 2017 meeting minutes as presented.



Ms. Laughlin expl' that the intention was to have them prepared in advanced. They know
that they have to have the plans ready to get permitting to get the construction bids done on the
project by the end of March. Our intent is to not have this drug out, so that if someone changes
their mind and takes a year to get a permit and then were allowing them another 9 months. Now
were two fiscal years down the road and we want to be able to complete this and allow this
expenditure within that fiscal year. That doesn't mean that they couldn't reapply for next year. If
they were able to get three bids, then they should be far enough along that they have their plans

bit to get a permit after the Grant was awarded, why don't we
the Agreement is signed or a Building Permit is issued.

apply for a permit based on whether they get this money or not.

Ms. Wines

Page 3 of 16Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting MinutesOctober 26, 20 I7

WI couple of weeks of final approval from the
the agreements were signed the 20th and the 24th of May,

After they were signed the Notice of Agreement was

IcmNnf~n the agreement is signed. When does that
they get a permit?

a motion on the other partsMr. Karr asked if they wanted to make a mob
and come back to this.

for for-profit businesses.Ms. Wines added that there is not whole

Mr. Dalling thought that would be nice.

Ms. Blohm added that it could be so they could
way to identify.

Mr. Dalling suggested they add into the definition, who pays
thought that would be a good definition, because now they
benefit. But if you don't pay into the system that doesn't do

t of theMs. Wines said all that is, is public utilities and both the
Downtown, so that's not going to be an issue going

Ms. Wines asked

Ms. Laughlin explained that it was determined that they paid property taxes, it just goes directly
to the State and to the County, not to the Redevelopment Agency.

Lina Blohm thought that was one of the issues with the NV Energy Gear Museum, it was thought
that they were waved from certain property taxes.

Ms. Laughlin thought they needed to clarify the definition of non-taxed entities.



Page 4 of 16Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting MinutesOctober 26, 2017

Ms. Laughlin said that's what she was trying to do. She was trying to make it simple, so that we
know this is the date that the Agreement starts, this is the date that the 9 months starts from.

Ms. Wines said why not make it a little bit simpler.

uld be enough. It takes forever to do construction. He thought
permit, then they would still have 7 months to finish, and they

an extension with the RDA. It's easier language and gets them on
and they hit a snag, then there's still the extension. He didn't think

the permit and then start it.

could always write
the ball. If something
they needed to wait

that they will go ahead with the project if they get
......v ....,_..or so to get a permit in place.

Ms.

~g~l,enlent is part of the packet. All we had to do
u ..vv ........""'.It didn't take us but 30 seconds

Ms. Laughlin exp .
was add in the "'.-vI,,.,., .._

talking about a week.Ms. Wines thought 30 to 45

missed opportunity. If someone is truly
days of approval by the Agency.

the agreeme t, because if
than all of them, and then you
areement that would be a

Ms. Laughlin asked if he meant an extension on the
can request an extension from the RDA.

Mr. Dalling said they have 9 months and they can get an ext

Ms. Wines thought they should have both. It's either when the agree
Building Permit is issued.

Mr. Karr asked if Ms. Wines wanted to get rid of it all together or add.

Ms. Wines thought that we should make it as easy as possible, not as difficult as possible. She
was looking at this like a Business owner and a Design Professional. Sometimes these things are
tricky and adding one more layer.

ready to get permitting. They can even include the cost of the permitting and design in the
reimbursement.



Page 5 of 16Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting MinutesOctober 26, 2017

"Motion Failed for lack of a Second.

***A Motion was made by Jeff Dalling to approve the Grant Guidelines as presented,
except for G(6). None Seconded.

Mr. Karr said he like to see motion for the recommended changes, except for, because of
further discussion, (1)6 and E.

needed to have the discussion.

three, it is kind of a standard.

Building and whatever that conversation
bid on a low number project like hers was. She was

and it's a good time to discuss what might help
$20,000 or $30,000.

tryi
busi

projects.

tax payer's money and they
bids is making it fair on the

Ms. Blohm asked if they could change it

Ms. Laughlin explained that it's a Nevada Revised
Redevelopment, anything over $10,000 needs to
definition of competitively bid, there are a variety of i
they could get around that. She thought it had to be comp
more than one.

Ms. Blohm said she had a suggested changes that she didn't
obtaining three bids.

Mr. Karr asked for any other proposed changes.

of the

Ms. Wines said yes. She wanted it to not be so restrictive at every sin

Ms. Blohm asked if Ms. Wines wanted a defined longer time period.

Ms. Wines said they were making it easier for the City, not necessarily for the business owner.
Sometimes these things are complicated and why make it even more complicated. Last year she
wasn't sure that they got the exact projects that they were looking for, because it's a complicated
process and it's a real short time period to get from drawings to complete bid packages by the
end of March.



Mr. Karr asked where Ms. Laughlin wanted to put the changes.

Mr. Dalling said he didn't want to string it out forever.

Ms. Wines said it's just another hoop that you have to jump through.

was going to put in an extension because he wasn't going to getMr. Dalling said he
it finished in time.

ng was so against it.Ms. Wines

them, because they could get a written extension.Mr.
Tha

, like Ms. Laughlin said if it takes six

Mr. Dalling said

else. She said he was a

use he thought theMr. Dalling said he was comfortable wi
permit process could take a long time, he

Mr. Karr asked to discuss E.

Page 6 of 16Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting MinutesOctober 26, 2017

(4-0)

CAB to approve***A Motion was made by Jeff Dalling, seconded by C
the Grant Guidelines as presented, except for G (6)

Mr. Karr wanted to go over the changes that they all agreed on

Ms. Laughlin explained to Mr. Wilkinson that she took out permit date, because some of the jobs
don't require permits.

Ms. Blohm said but it all has to occur within the same calendar year.

Ms. Wines said sure.

Ms. Laughlin asked for clarification on the timeline of approval. She asked if Ms. Wines wanted
the 9 months to start on the Permit Date.



Page 7 of 16Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting MinutesOctober 26, 2017

Ms. Laughlin pointed out that they needed to keep the budget in mind. Our budget, annually,
includes this $50,000 up to the 5 years. That's all that we have approved up to this date. Four
years from now we don't want someone to come in three years later with a reimbursement

Mr. Karr thought they were forgetting about the extension. He didn't want to get too structured,
so that the RDA loses their teeth to say no.

nths was too short last year.Ms. Wines thought 9

tie it to either or, whichever date is later, and then
. He thought if they gave Ms. Laughlin some time to craft

rn,....,' ...<3·~~£'ompassing,it might be better. If we have enough time to hear
Building P
language that
this one more time.

expiration off.Mr.

s not the business owner's fault if the
ust making it harder for the businesses.

Mr. Wilkinson said that would be a justification for an ~n."~J.J.oJ'

argument. Weare trying to make our money go to work
commitments that sit out there for years on end that
were getting the advantages of putting that money
apparent in the Downtown and incentivize additi
it to be strung out for years. We have two issues, we
Building Permit, and so we need to change that. You co
language and "whichever date is later" I ,and still
could put a limit on how long it takes to ding Permit.
expires in 180 days so you could say som
extension. If you submit plans and they are
you can't do your project, you're done. He
they put it in the Guide'

't want
uire a

y have some "and/or" type
an extension. Maybe you
.I '"U.Jl~J.J..~~ Permit Application

not eligible for
there and expires, because

funding and suggested that

Mr. Dalling asked what would happen if it took two years to get

Mr. Wilkinson suggested they add "or issuance of a Building Permit,

Ms. Laughlin clarified that it happens whenever the applicant comes in to sign the agreement,
this year it happened to be a week later.

Ms. Wines said that happens a week after the RDA approves it.

Ms. Laughlin explained her proposed changes would read "all Storefront Improvements must be
completed within 9 months of the date of the signed Participant Agreement."



Mr. Karr thought the Participation Agreement was the better way to go, as presented by Ms.
Laughlin.

Ms. Blohm liked the clarification.

Mr. Dalling didn't think that they need to keep carrying it out.

this wouldn't eliminate the request for a written extension.Ms. Blohm pointed 0

it was. He felt that someone could string this out for years
He thought with the language how it is now, you could always

t takes longer.

Mr.

Ms. Wines restated

Ms. Wines thought they only needed three

Mr. Karr said those were the four opti

.s exactly how it is,
rk some

Before the Second Mr. Karr added that they have four
without any changes, change it the way that Ms. L
wording, and the fourth is the motion that is c

* * *A motion was made by Catherine Wines, ACAB to add
Participant Agreement, or the issuance of a Building P

Ms. Wines thought the friendlier they make it to businesses the better.

Mr. Wilkinson said those were good points. The nine months that is specified is more liberal than
the 180 day expiration of the Building Permit.

request, and then we don't have the funds because we're doing something else. We want to make
sure that we have control of it. Ms. Laughlin believed that it's in the respect of the business
owners and the property tax payers that they see a bang for their buck, and they see the
difference that we are making in the downtown.

Page 8 of 16Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting MinutesOctober 26,2017



* * *A motion was made by Jeff Dalling to add to G a Number 7 that says "If you are not
paying property taxes into the RDA you are ineligible."

Ms. Wines said that there are a lot of grants available to non-profits, which aren't available to
business owners.

Mr. Dalling pointed out that they don't control what the RDA does.

ommend that they apply to the National Trust for Historic
entity.Preservation, or ano

.ng to think this through, because they could come back in three
y would then be ineligible.

this is just what they are recommending to the RDA.Ms.

to co back to us, or the Gear Museum at some
. She asked if that's what everyone was

set a precedence with Western Folklife Center.

Mr. Dalling thought that

Ms. Blohm said they should probably still

Mr. Dalling suggested they add a Number 7 that says
taxes into the RDA." Then that would eliminate the
property taxes into the RDA then you' ineligible. He
working on the verbiage on Number 6.

wn, they lease out a
building. The

Ms. Laughlin said no. Let's say that the City of Elko own
space to an attorney, and the attorney wants to do a Stox;rltml~nrIpI
attorney would be the applicant, but he leases a sp

Ms. Wines stated that G was titled "Ineligible Properties", and Num
Offices and Agencies." She asked if they put "Non-Governmental
parenthesis because of the Folklife Center.

Mr. Karr asked for discussion on G (6). He asked if they were headed towards including property
tax participants.

*Motion passed (3-1, Mr. Dalling opposed).

The Council then Voted on the Motion.

Page 9 of 16Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting MinutesOctober 26, 2017



Page 10 of 16Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting MinutesOctober 26, 2017

Ms. Wines thought that NV Energy, which also had other issues, contacted 3 architects in town
on the 2nd of January and asked them to submits for the project. Going through the process of
selecting an architect, design, and bidding it wasn't ready until May 1st. Itwas a bigger project
and it just took longer. Those are the ones we really want and they won't come along every year.

Ms. Department sent out 440 postcards to property owners, and
Free Press in November and December, and put it on the City

~llt-+,~,ilW,t- out there on the I" of November again. She has answered
questions and calls the year and let everyone know that this is the timeframe that they
can submit. Every si plicant turned it in on the day it was due. The word is out. We can
start some additional ic service advertisements, get it on TV, and radio. She thought that if
they gave them 6 months, they would tum it on June 30th.

Mr.

aware now and understand the procedures.

Ms. Wines asked if J

***A motion was made by Jeff Dalling, seconded
changes are subject to legal review.

unanimously. (4-0).

Ms. Wines Seconded the Motion.

Ms. Laughlin moved on to the Grant
Page 5 in the Acknowledgment Checkli
to obtain a Building Permit, and added in '
other changes from the Board.

Ms. Blohm suggested they think about that for a second. That would include the School District
and utilities.

Mr. Dalling repeated his motion.

Before the second Mr. Wilkinson suggested the board make a motion that the proposed changes
are subject to legal review and approval of the documents. We can get the wording pretty close
and then Mr. Stanton will take a look at it and make sure its legal.



Page 11 of 16Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting MinutesOctober 26, 2017

Ms. Laughlin stated that she had no revisions to the other two forms. She asked if anyone else
had any proposed revisions.

*Motion passed unanimously. (4-0)

***A motion was by Catherine Wines, ACAB, seconded by Lina Blohm to accept the
Reimbursement Request Form as presented.

why she added "if applicable."

it was a general contractor or a window installation.Ms. Wines

. She had two proposed changes. For
ontractor, "That the proof of payment for

icable." They are the ones that are
.. .1..1..1.\,"'...... '" of insurance. Also the grant recipient is

f of payment submitted up to the maximum amount of
Redevelopment Agency. She proposed adding those

invoices must
providing
eligible
$25

otion passed unanimously. (4-0)

***A motion was made by Jeff Dalling,
Application as presented.

Mr. Wilkinson said this wouldn't be unlike applying
you're planning on capitalizing on available funding you
advance to meet the deadlines.

Ms. Laughlin said they looked at it as far as time frame
March so that the review committee decides in April, .
people are ready to start construction in May.

Ms. Wines recommended starting right now to get the word 0

Ms. Laughlin said it was a $25,000 maximum.

Ms. Wines pointed out that that doesn't limit size of the projects. If a project is $200,000 they are
still eligible for a $25,000 grant.

Ms. Blohm agreed. They were talking about large projects. We're limited to $25,000 per
business.

Ms. Laughlin said if they know about it today, then they should in the process of planning that
ahead of time, and not starting on January 1st.



Page 12 of 16Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting MinutesOctober 26, 2017

There was further discussion about putting away money for a future project or land acquisition.

Mr. Wilkinson said he would have to look back at that. If it's not being budgeted each budget
cycle, then it's not being planned.

Ms. Blohm asked if that was still in there as a change.

for that year only at that time.Mr. Wilkinson said it

Mr. Wilkinson if they permitted $100,000 per year on the
didn't think it was per year.

*Motion passed unanimously. (4-0)

p
by Jeff Dalling to approve the RDA Plan as

comeesack with quite a few other changes, and we
y changes in the Plan portion, most of

Ms. Laughlin said
can bring it back
the changes are in the P

had turned in before.

Ms. Laughlin said they could do it that

Ms. Blohm asked if she wanted to go

corridor. The 30%
approved RDA Plan.
24,2017 meetings and
,~ .....,.a~"\rt"''''·ons for

RDA took action to approve the phasing of projects in the
approved plans and the projects are ready to be amended i
RAC reviewed this agenda item at their July 27,2017
tabled the item. It was requested that the RAC come
amendments to the RDA Plan at this meeting.

Ms. Laughlin explained that she requested the me
they would like to see made, before the next s
review, and then taking it to the RDA for final

A. Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to the Redevelopment Agency for
amendments to the RDA Plan, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

I. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Ms. Laughlin said she would have an update in reports on the status of the projects.

Ms. Blohm asked if there were any comments, or concerns, about the program.



Page 13 of 16Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting MinutesOctober 26, 2017

Ms. Blohm said this was an excellent reminder that they are proceeding according to a plan that
was developed 12 years ago. It's nice to know that they are slowly on track.

Ms. Laughlin went through the remainder of the proposed changes to the Preliminary Plan.

There was discussion about the Cultural District.

go through the proposed changes.Ms. Laughlin contin

y knew that it's used more now.

to pay a ton of money for a new survey.

Mr.

,-",VJ.....,..,,'VrSurvey. This wasn't
spaces haven't changed, it's how many are

Ms. Laughlin explained
something that was
used at what time.

. As long as they are
thought Corridor

Ms. Blohm thought it was important to
updating the Preliminary Plan, she thought
Parking was going to become a hot topic.

. theMs. Wines asked if this was the proper time to tal
Corridor.

There was discussion about the Corridor Parking Survey._..,~

Ms. Laughlin continued to go through the changes.

Ms. Wines asked if they should add the Gear Museum.

Ms. Laughlin continued to go through the proposed changes.

Ms. Blohm suggested they update Sierra Pacific Power to NV Energy.

Ms. Laughlin explained that there were more proposed modifications in the Preliminary Plan.
She then went over the proposed changes to the Preliminary Plan.

The Board then voted on the motion.



Page 14 of 16Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting MinutesOctober 26, 2017

Ms. Laughlin explained that they did take action at the last meeting, and they
approved the letter with thefew changes that were requested. It was a

Ms. Blohm brought up the Letter that they wanted to send out to theproperty and
business owners in the downtown. They've been continually updating and
changing the letter. She askedfor the blessing of the board to continue to do that
and get afinal draft to present to the RDA.

before and after pictures of the Alley Project. She said she
emailfrom Jerrod with Elko Sanitation, once thefranchise
completed and the new units were installed. He said how grateful

us doing this project and asked when we could start on the next alley.

have passed the 4-way
new windows are in. He

front. are on track. He is going to try to
renters can get in and have their studios.

A. Storefront Improvement Program

tor was
e they

they
the

Ms. Laughlin showed a before and after pic
is a requirement of the Storefront Pro
scheduled to install the awnings on
were behind of afew otherjobs
can install the awnings. The aw
project has beenpermitted. Western
week and they stated that they are still
stucco issue that is curre being resolved.
windows can befinished.

B.

II. REPORTS

*Motion passed unanimously. (4-0)

*** A motion was made by Catherine Wines, ACAB, seconded by Lina Blohm to approve
the Preliminary Plan as presented, and direct staff to send to legal counsel.

Ms. Laughlin added that they were working on a lot of things that are mentioned in the Plan.



Ms. Wines brought up the Demolition Program. There is afranchise group that is
going to rent out part of The Commercial and they want to do a complete

explained that they have to get theplan amendment, because the
to be added into theplan. And project 3 in thephasing that was voted

on is block ends, prior to the 400 and 500 Block sidewalks. Ifwe can work
both projects at the same time, because we have thefund balance, that would be
great. Until the plan gets amended, she hadn't reach out to any of theproperty
owners to see ifwe can have the 75% come on board to have a special
improvement district.

if they were movingforward with the sidewalk improvement

ion about the cost of the lights and how to go about

Page 15 of 16Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting MinutesOctober 26, 2017

whole pole lights. She requested
to her on that. They were also looking at

funded by a grant. They are 20 years
what the cost would be and hadn't

Ms. Wines said they talked last time about t
wondering where that was.

There was further discussion about updating the pho
the photo should be of the before and after of the

Ms. Blohm said no, they changed photos and Ms. Laughlin updated the numbers.

Ms. Wines asked if there was major changes that needed to be made.

recommendation to go to the RDA. What we need to do is have a request from Mr.
Karr to put letter back on the next agendafor the RAC, if you would like to make
additional changes. From there those changes can be made and a
recommendation made to send it to the RDA.



Page 16 of16Redevelopment Advisory Council Meeting MinutesOctober 26, 2017

Lina Blohm, Secretary

ADJOURNMENT

There were no public comments made a

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

Ms. Laughlin explained that that demolition
Improvement Program.

Ms. Wines asked ~rthey can revisit Demolition

Ms. Laughlin said she looked through the Demolition Program, the way it is
written today it would not qualify. It would qualify for the Storefront Improvement
Program. The Demolition Program, the way it is written today, is it has to be
demolished down to bare ground and rebuilt, and it is reimbursed at the end of
development.

overhaul of the exterior facade, meaning taking most of the exterior facade off to
get back to the original brick. She asked Ms. Laughlin if that could be included in
the Demolition program

e.Mr. Karr thought they needed to be



,,'_ ..

., ', ..~
13. Agenda Distribution:

12.' Agency Action:

11. Committee/Other-Agency Review:

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner

,. .~ 4.

'11.) -,

Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the RAe9.

7, Business Impact Statement: Requiredv Not Required

8. Supp,lementatAgehda Informati0n~')ucunl~iit:.frtm::ell'tberineWines .

.., .
6.

Background Informatio5.

.' Budget Inforffittion:
ApprQPI!ation Required: N/;f\
Budget amount available:~I A '
Fund name: N/A

4.,~ . Time Required: 10 minutes

L Title: Review and consideration for a directional signage program for. the Central
Business District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

t
2. Meeting Date: J~nuaryt25, 2018

i~.."fl;F />~~..'", I. .
3. Agenda Catig~dry: "NEW BUSINESS .

~~ity OfEllkO Req;~lopment Advisory Council
0;;;",,' Ag:~iia'a.ACtion Sheet '

, .... -,""

"('!Jl'l~#i~ Y.;.

, ,- t-_~, !' :F

.t... '" ~

·V,-
J

· .

Agenda Item # LA.



6studio. com

6~,·

i ~-

Thanks,
C

Recommendation to RDA would be let us research the project, or maybe we research more before
and send it to RDA later. Cost is really what we need to nail down. Design is pretty easy, you just
need a consistent look and then you plug information in.

I like the idea of each one giving direction to someplace close ... ie Western Folklife Center, Post
Office, Centennial Park; something mid distance ... ie Great Basin College, Golf Course, Humboldt
River; and something a ways away ... ie Lamoille Canyon, California Trail Center, Angel Lake. And
everyone is different with-in a block just to show diversity of the area and how much their is to
look at and do.

I think it would be nice to have them on every corner in the central business district. We don't have
to do them all at once. A person probably doesn't need this much 'direction' but they also act as a
place maker, marking the district. We could even designate an area on each one of them for
advertising, so businesses could help off set the cost. Also, they could be removed and reused if
sidewalks change, or new concrete is put in.

The cost would be very minimal, It's basically two pieces of square pipe about 4' tall, maybe 6" to
8" square. One piece is a little bigger than the other so it slides down on top of the smaller one
that is anchored to the sidewalk. Also, possibly a powder coat and some exterior vinyl printing. It's
a good design because if something needs to be changed you just unbolt it, slip off the top pipe
and change out the printing. You could have all four sides different, or probably better would be to
have two sides of each sign the same.



13. Agenda Distribution:

12. Agency Action:

11. Committee/Other Agency Review:

10. Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner

9. Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the RAC

8. Supplemental Agenda Information: Approved Phasing for Corridor Project, Projected
revenues for life of RDA, 2017-18 budget

7. Business Impact Statement: Required 1Not Required

6. Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: NIA
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

5. Background Information: Budget for tlie 2018/19 fiscal year will be completed within
the next several months.

4. Time Required: 10 minutes

2. Meeting Date: January 25, 2018

1. Title: Review, consideration, and possible recommendation to the Redevelopment
Agency on the upcoming budget cycle for 2018/19 regarding allocating funds, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

City of Elko Redevelopment Advisory Council
Agenda ction Sheet

3. Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS

Agenda Item # LB.



N,......
0 00en'" ,..-t

0 0
00 N

Vl- r!.
,..-t
0
N...
CU
QD
\J~
CXl
<{
Q
0:::.........
VI...
CU
QD
\J~
CXl
<{
Q
0:::............c::
CU
Ec..
..Q

Q) cu
+oJ >re cu
""C \Jcu
0 0:::

.........
+oJ QD
Q) c: 00
U c ,..-t

C c 0
ro to N- ........
ro a.. 00

--:":,..-t
CO ~ ........

,..-t

0 U)

00
,...... N~ 00~ U)... N'"I+- 00 N Lon Vl-

1,1)
<, ~

« 00 Vl-~
..........~

'" Ln 0 0 q-
""C 00 N Lf) 0 U)

0 N U) 0 enQ) +oJ ... ... ,......... q-'" N'":> Q) I' qo
0 CD M '" ,...... Vl- ~.... ""C 00 'V\- N N
0. :::J 'V\- Vl- ~'0. CO« Vl-

c.f)
Q)
:::J

~C -Q) ""C ""C
:> Q) Q)
Q) +oJ
0::: u roc 0. -ro ""C

u Q)ro +oJ +oJ..c C ro
""C ro 0.

Q) C - .~
U :::J 1,1) +oJ
C I+- Q) C
~ CD :::J ro

C C -ro .- Q) 1,1)
CO c :> Q)

""C C Q) :::J 1,1)

C CD 0::: C Q)
:::J Q) X Q) :::J
u. ..c ro :> c
CD ..... Q) Q)0 0::: :>c +oJ >- +oJ Q)
C +oJ t 1,1) 0:::
C Q) Q) Q) -CD 0. .... roCD ""C 0 Q) +oJ
Q) :::J +-' 0.... CCO CO a. - .....

0 U) rt') U) ~ N 00
00 N en 0 r-, Lf) en rt')

rt') ~ rt') r-, q- ~ N~ f-t" \!) Vl- u1 q-' ffl ~I+- 0
0 N Vl- q- Vl- N 0 00
1,1) <, Vl- Vl- N N« 00 Vl- Vl-~

<,
~

0 0 0 0 0 0 00 U) 0 q-
""C 0 0 0 0 0 0 ~ q- 0 U)
Q) +oJ 0 0 0 0 0 0 Lf) rt') ~ en

Q) ,
0'"~ ... 0' 0'" Lf)' ~' 0' Vl- ...

:> Lon N
0 CD N Lf) Vl- Lon q- ,...... ~ U) ~

1,1) .... ""C Vl- Vl- Vl- Vl- Vl- N r-, N
Q) 0. :::J Vl- Vl- ~ ....... 0. CO
:::J « Vl-.~
""Cc
Q)

00.
X U
LU +- \J VI

1,1) \J CU VI CU
+oJ CU IlD c.. :~c IlD \J VI
Q) \J CU s: ·Z QDa. VI

E .!! ~ ~ c::
c.. - cu - .s;

c 0Q) E -e to ""C 1,1)

:> ~ to c:: VI C Q)
0 cu ~ to 0 VI :::J 1,1)

?: IlD a.. ·Z \J C.... 0 ~ u.
0. 0 ~ CU to to Q)~ c, ... u s CDE VI to 0 0.

.~ E ... ~ > "ii 0 c X- c: ~ .~ ...
.~ c QJ 0 0 c, 0::: cu .2 UJ- c:: .~ ... ?: .~ ... u 0 -ro ..c cu - c:: ro... U cu >- VI :>CD ... ::c ~ +oJ

Q) :::J c: VI 0 ~ s: Q) 0QJ ~ ... <C ~ ... to
_J a. u VI e, ...... CO 0::: .....

+-'
Q)
tlD
""C
:::lco
00
~ 000 \"""i
N 0
<, N
....... 0'~ rt")
0 QJ
N c
>- ::::l

"""'"U 0
C +-'
Q) ,......
eo \"""i

0<! N

+-' \"""i"
C ~Q) ::::l
E """'"
a.
0>Q)
""C
Q)
ex:





._. ~ ,

10. Prepared ·BY:"Cathy tali' :bti:n;tjit§~ii13liDer

7: Business ltil'P'~ot8t~te~ellt!R~qpireQ'/Ne.ti~eq,uDe,d:

'8. ,S;uPlll~'enl~ "'~;~nd ',6tmatioh: :M6DittfiFum City P'I,allD"ertEr()i~tted'~~VClltleS"
park,de-sigtl ' " . ".<

9. Reoommen~~~t~(l>tiAre:f~ f~O"l)1tn.ell'\l:t<¥Jb~IlBA to a,p~Qv~ ,tb~;HJj:thltioD"f,frmding
for P'r'~j;eef4ie~at~tlle\~Il1J~el ~o:rt~ltQi;:'PJ,()je~tiu -tke a'lUoulll Df~S2'o,OWO.

;~ , _, ,,'" - '~. ;,~ , . ~" -

. ~l

$. ~:trJ·.·.\:"l}ackgrot}n~"tni{jrmaiien:~A.)tt~a~·al(!d:$2tO,,80;~·t{)~rds; ·t~e,'tel~~ll'tiQilof 'the
. ,.:',:~:'ft$~~~~lle3d··''a.fi~~tie's',a{aog17th'St'~~t.frfl,,*r'Oomll1e.9:~~t;tPJrltiiilrmidi~5~O,66D"tow~ards
, ...pt;§~'ChJlt~:U~f-F~nte,~r.'·l·,,,,:a,- ;nfd·~t51~1}7.~,~(qwiit~,a'ebartge, o~tl~r'fQ",tb~
',f~ckical~(~~lij~~ji~( ,,~·\Cl•., '~, e~nl~rftn:~atT~~~,ras'w~llas tbe ,~¢lo.cad9D of

tl*~ljji~s;p~~:e~tSc 3~'~;~;~~T 'JJI~ftj"~llni~'iCff~Jll~te,sllt~e\rro~e~t#1 &f drc'P'baS'0 ,I·CQJrridor
'fqj:e~t.JTti~~ilfk'e*il:~lf~t6n,~ibt~.1th·.ttp~~t.JeonD'~tjli:g,the;Cltil~D,n~Ce})1Qnltial
Ttotv.er to tll'e{e_~'sfj~fp)Jrk:a;reais;,a;Ptt,oved as pfQi'ect #2 luttie Pb:asef';l·(g'orthl'o,F
Proj~t. Sfafl~ e~r~ted. t)i~ de~gn Iortlris ~r~~.of th~ P4trk~Staff ptevioosly
reetnDJuenued tbe prOlJ;ed be fundedeJaf $l~O,OOO~lId tbe ~€ t~cQmm~d:ed
fund~ftg·ai.Sl'~8,OOOWlti!h'Was ~t(,:rb~ed '~y"tbe~~,o'll\~{14/?b.17, ISt;~ffwm
el'ploli~;Jbe~ll~~,Q'fC'i)ty 'F~souree.s t:(i, re.du"e'l1Je' '~~Ir~:fP~'t1i~4~,"U,j:'e~fbtd feels, that tHe
.pt," 'bi;tiat~tul1d~n,g~ej~(lmlUendk1'iQncol;$liD~,QQ~~~~~¢·curate.·tt®t:o additional
;i,~J " ," _}(W~~r~~'~~f1~tfl~~i~~~~JJ~~i~,~i?:,~Ild 'I~ll,dst~fng ~hat ~a~,~'.~.,co;Dsidered
. ~~e!llthe',prQ)~'~~;'ft1Jl s\:r~dD~~dto $13'8,000.S~LQfflSreqll~stlng tlte',RAC
,r:e~~d:ns:i:d,er~~its:{g~',~m;_. .~~._.DB'fo;-tJieBDA lilllUin,g the'f1..t'djnig,~t(j";$:t3:I~tnmand to
.itlcrease·£u4\f4~,g:tij\tlltiibi~j~1t.e~oJttnl,~ttda~tilJlt;"f'$~S·n~nDO,.AS;'of,Jaun<ary 18" 2018:,
t'hCl',e is' f8U~,;OGQb>'availa~l'~-IUjlauee toftlDd~'Ili:f~qu.es,t. '

6. B\.l~trtlnfor~Q~: .... 1. .. ... . '
Appropriation R.eg_ullied:NIA

, Budget amount ,a"~ailable: N'JA
Fundname. N/A

3.

4.

L Title; Revie\V~~'~ns)deratmR, and,posS"ibl~~-ti~()tn'men(f}aJti()b'(:0.the 'Red~yre)&pm,eilt
Age~y. t03~il~y~,·tJl~~i~JW~t!~ii::offutp;diug·Pro:jed N2l-Cen*ellDtal'P}}r'k,W~st Blutk
En4¥,~lttt,\Jj;I~t!~'F$~fr~~~t~~t,fl~reJo~P:OltPOSSIBIJE ~€'TtON

.:.:~/:'~.}~:
·,·t;; ;. ,c , " '01

Meet~llg:nllt~~~im'~ry~
" " ',',<:,:'___ -t

2.

CitYi;J., ',I\~,'~ed¢vejqpm~ntAdvisoryCouncil
~r/',~" . .AgendirActi'Ottc'8heet



Included with this memo is the projected revenue over the life of the Redevelopment Area
clearly showing that the funding of a full $5 million for Phase 1 of the Corridor Project is
feasible leaving a remaining $4.2-$5.3 million for additional projects. Revenue in 2017 was
$327,200.59 and if we had been increasing at the proposed 2%, we would have received

Project 2 was presented by staff at an estimated cost of $250,000 and recommended by RAC and
approved by RDA to be funded at $138,000 on 2/14/2017. A summary of the RAC discussion on
reducing the cost was based on project 3 block ends. Block ends cost of $415,000 was divided by
3 as it included 3 blocks and that is how RAC determined the $138,000. RAC did not consider
the west end of Centennial Park would require irrigation, landscaping, street closure, and
additional sidewalks when they were reducing the cost of the project. Staff continues to believe
that the project will cost $250,000 and is recommending the RDA approve the expenditure of
$250,000 for Project 2.

Project 1 is complete.

Projects 1,3, & 4 are 100% infrastructure. The majority of projects 2,5 & 6 are infrastructure
but also include a small portion of beautification with additional landscaping elements.

$200,000.00
$250,000.00
$415,000.00
$515,000.00

$2,330,000.00
$900,000.00

$4,610,000.00

Staff
Recommended

Cost
Project
#

1 7th Street Overhead Lines $200,000.00
2 Centennial Park - West block end $138,000.00
3 Block Ends- 4th, 5th and 6th St. $415,000.00
4 Sidewalks-400 & 500 blocks $515,000.00
5 Complete Blocks800 -1000 $1,000,000.00
6 Centennial Park - Expansionto East $900,000.00

Phase 1 total $3,168,000.00

APPROVED BY RDA 2-14-2017

The Redevelopment Agency took action on February 14,2017 to approve the projects and
phasing sequence of the projects for the Phase 1Corridor Project as follows:

To: Elko Redevelopment Agency
From: Cathy Laughlin -City Planner
Date: January 17, 2018

Memorandum

1751College Avenue . Elko,Nevada89801 . (775)777-7160 . Fax (775) 777-7119

CITY OF ELKO
Planning Department

Website: www.elkocity.com
Email: planning@ci.elko.nv.us



Exhibits:

RDA Funding projections, Centennial Park west end expansion plans
Recommendation:

Recommend to the RDA to approve the initiation of funding for Project #2 of the Phase 1
Corridor Project in the amount of $250,000.00.

$104,057.45 in revenues. The difference is 214% higher than the projected 2% growth identified
in the RDA Plan.



/~

/

_._

/
/
/
/
./
/
/
/
/
/
/
/

./
/
/
/
/
/
/
/

R
~-

-....11.-

/
/
/
/
/
/
/
/
/
/
/
/

//
/
/
/
/

/
/
/
/
/

//¢}-
/1- '

-tt:+/'- t-tl-+
/ I

/
/
/
/
/



'
,

....:
~

'l'I
If

.~
_"
~,
;

..-.
,~
,,.k

I\J O
J ~r
~,
*;





$10,300,000.00

$5,690,000.00

$200,000.00
$250,000.00
$415,000.00
$515,000.00

$2,330,000.00
$900,000.00

$4,610,000.00

$1,530,000.00
$1,600,000.00
$1,090,000.00
$1,470,000.00

Staff
Recommended

Cost

$8,858,000.00Phases 1 & 2 Total

Project #
1 7th Street Overhead lines $200,000.00
2 Centennial Park - West block end $138,000.00
3 Block Ends- 4th, 5th and 6th St. $415,000.00
4 Sidewalks-400 & 500 blocks $515,000.00
5 Complete Blocks800 -1000 $1,000,000.00
6 Centennial Park - Expansionto East $900,000.00

Phase 1 total $3,168,000.00

7 Reconstruct 600 block $1,530,000.00
8 Reconstruct 500 block $1,600,000.00
9 Reconstruct 400 block $1,090,000.00
10 Reconstruct 300 block $1,470,000.00

Phase 2 total $5,690,000.00

APPROVED BY RDA 2-14-2017

Corridor Project Phasing



Millburn, NI (est. pop. 20,149),
adopted a Complete Streets program
in 2014, outlining a series of goals
and objectives to make the streets
safer for pedestrians, improve traffic
flow, address intersection congestion,
and calm traffic where appropriate.
Phase Iof the three-phase project
was just completed in September, yet
the town is already seeing results and
garnering awards.

The $8.2 million Complete
Streets program will update func-

© 2017 Alexander Communications Group, Inc. All rights reserved.

tionally obsolete downtown
infrastructure and make roadways
and sidewalks safer for motor-
ists and residents. Two years of
extensive planning and engineering
research went into the Complete
Streets project with multi-disciplin
ary design experts.

Millburn's project was recog
nized in October with the Complete
Streets Excellence award at the
2017 New Jersey Complete Streets

(Continued on page 7)

Design& Capital Improvement

Phased Complete Streets project improves
safety, accessibility, and more

"Downtown has a high [street
level] vacancy rate and hasn't
experienced the growth that our
neighboring cities have, so we are
very motivated to push forward a
number of initiatives aimed at making
our downtown the destination that we
know it can become," Taylor says.

The city has been active in
promoting residential development
to put more feet on the street. "Cur
rently, there are about 400 units of
housing that have gone online or are
in construction," Taylor says.

(Continued on page 3)

Despite being a "stone's throw"
from one of the nation's best beaches,
downtown Clearwater, FL (est. pop.
107,685), is not the thriving city
center it could be, says Seth Taylor,
director of the Community Redevel
opment Agency (CRA). Downtown
leaders are taking a number of short
term and long-term steps to bring
more businesses, visitors, and energy
to the area, including placemaking,
public space activation, street and
waterfront upgrades, and an incentive
program which aims to attract anchor
tenants.

Revitalization Projects

Using many tools builds investor confidence
Inside this issue

Pop-upmatches entrepre
neurswith resources to spur
business creation. Curated
networking event fast tracks
new business owners •••••• 2

Planningfor a vibrant future.
City waterfront reimagined to
create better connection with
downtown ••••••••.•••••• 4

Olderfacilities becomemore
user friendly with technol
ogy.Where to park, how
to pay, and how to manage
systems are evolving •••••• 5
Repurposedunderpass
provides connectivity and
public gathering space.A dog
park, a boardwalk, landscap
ing, and activation turn eyesore
into asset • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • 6
Community surveys help
identify the needsof rapidly
growing neighborhood.Guid
ance leads to businesses and
events to fill the gaps •••••• 8
Greenprojects manage
stormwater, improve aes
thetics. Cities are soaking
up environmentally friendly
infrastructure •••••••••••• 9
IdeaExchange.Festival street
adds flexible event space, Pilot
program streamlines permitting
process, and more . . . . . . . 11

Vol. 64, No. 11
November 2017

{



Downtown Idea Exchange. www.DowntownDevelopment.com • November 2017

economic development and job creation in our
city, so having an event like that being launched
here makes a lot of sense."

Attendees include those preregistered after
seeing traditional or digital publicity, as well as
walk-ins attracted by pop-up staff handing flyers
out on the sidewalk prior to the event. New
comers are asked to fill out forms, providing
company name, revenue, number of employees,
profitability, and answering questions such as,
'Why aren't you twice as big as you are today?'
Groover or one of her half-dozen helpers then
leads attendees inside and introduces the pro
fessionals who could help make that growth
happen, says Inc. Magazine.

The four-day event in Philadelphia attracted
about 650 attendees. "Many already had sole
proprietorships they've struggled to scale.
Others were screwing up their courage to
launch," says Inc. "Groover's pop-ups are meant
- in an hour or two - to lay a foundation for
nascent companies to grow."

While attendance fell short of Groover's
goal to attract 1,000 attendees, those who did
attend were pleased, says Inc. "I have Googled
and Googled and it is impossible to try and find
all these people online," one entrepreneur tells
the magazine. "I know these people have all
been vetted. I don't worry that I'll have to pay
$100 to talk to somebody and find out I didn't
even need them. This has lit a little bit of a fire
under me."

The final stop for most attendees at the
Philadelphia event was Steve Harrison, host of
the National Publicity Summit, a business that
helps companies get media exposure. "We're
giving them education, but affirmation, as well,"
Harrison tells Inc. "People realize when they are
talking to the experts that their idea is better than
they thought and what they're doing is better."

And finally, entrepreneurs who are unable to
attend an event in person, and those who want
more detailed information and a continuing con
nection with mentors, can register for JumpStart
StartUp's online Academy. mEl

The JumpStart StartUp is a free pop-up
program offering entrepreneurs information
and mentorship for every stage of business
startup and growth. Launched in Philadel
phia, PA (est. pop. 1,526,006), the program
is unique, say organizers. The event is set up
like a trade show, but instead of wandering
aimlessly, attendees are escorted from station
to station and introduced to service providers,
including bookkeepers, legal advisors, a media
trainer, a website developer, and several others,
who for a few minutes will answer questions
and offer advice.

"We essentially mentor them through the
store," JumpStart StartUp founder Jen Groover
tells Inc. Magazine. "Often, entrepreneurs miss
opportunities because they don't know what
they don't know. We explain why each person
they are going to meet with is important."

Groover built several successful businesses
of her own before launching a speaking, writ
ing, and media career. Groover believes that
staged, guided events that bring entrepreneurs
together with a team of curated profession-
als will streamline the start-up process. She
teamed up with Joseph Purifico, a pioneer on
the Philadelphia pop-up scene for more than
two decades, to launch JumpStart StartUp.
The inaugural event took place last year, fol
lowed by events in New York City, Baltimore
and Boston.

Events are free to entrepreneurs. Advis-
ers pay Groover a sponsorship fee in hope
that these business "speed dates will tum into
marriages," says Inc. Some local consultants are
featured at each event, while others are national
corporations such as Comcast, UPS, and online
banking services. The city of Philadelphia was
also a sponsor of its local event, providing in
kind support and helping to promote the pop-up.

"Getting your business off the ground
in one day is a wonderful new idea," Archna
Sahay, director of entrepreneurial investment
in the Philadelphia Department of Commerce,
tells Inc. "Entrepreneurship is a major driver of

Pop-up matches entrepreneurs with resources
to spur business creation

Business Recruitment & Retention

2

DowntownDevelopment.com

To view JumpStart
StartUp promotional
videos, visit our website
and click on Web Extras.



3November 2017 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com

announcing the program, the
eRA had received inquiries
from about 70 businesses.

businesses to locate here," says
Taylor. "It also sends a strong
message that the city of Clear
water is open for business and
wants to work closely with busi
ness owners to help them locate and thrive here.
That's why we are offering these very signifi
cant financial incentives."

Incentive funds are coming out of the CRA
budget. 'This program is not going to last
forever," Taylor says. "This is about attracting
great anchor tenants. Our hope is that it helps
solve the investor confidence problem we have
now, and then the program will phase out as
the market strengthens to the point that we
don't need to offer these types of incentives
anymore."

Food and drink establishments are being tar
geted because, "that seems to be a good model
to jumpstart a main street," Taylor says. "The
thinking is that once you build up that critical
mass, get some feet on the street, it will inspire
confidence from retailers to come into the
market, so we're really excited about this pro
gram, and we have some great leads already."

Topping the wish list is a craft brewery,
because these businesses have both a manu
facturing and retail component, and often
choose to be active members of their chosen
communities, Taylor says. "It's really not just
about filling storefronts, but a major placemak-

Within two weeks of

targeting restaurants and breweries, specifically,
looking to land about five great anchor busi
nesses over the next 12 to 18 months. The way
we will do that is to offer financial incentives to
pay for 35 percent of the total project cost up to
$250,000."

Each year that a participating business
remains open, one fifth of the loan amount is
forgiven, so that, "after five years, the loan is
entirely wiped away," Taylor says. Incentive
funds can be used for furniture, fixtures, equip
ment, build-out costs, and to subsidize the rent.

Within two weeks of announcing the
program, the eRA had received inquiries from
about 70 businesses throughout the region.
"This demonstrates the pent-up demand for
downtown Clearwater, for

Courting retail businesses is more complicated
Retail density for the downtown remains, "a

tough nut to crack," says Taylor. "We've done
all the streetscaping you can imagine down
town. It's gorgeous, with beautiful, human-scale
storefronts and architecture, but one thing lack
ing right now is investor confidence."

Taylor attributes investor hesitancy to two
main factors. One is the perception of down
town being dominated by institutional uses,
since the Church of Scientology headquarters,
as well as city and county government func
tions, are located in the city center. "That has
deterred businesses from locating down here,"
he says.

"Secondly, we have been hearing that
like many municipalities, zoning hasn't really
matched up with market demand," says Taylor.
"For example, we have parking requirements
for new businesses that want to come down
town, and height restrictions. The good news
is that we are now addressing both of those
things." Downtown's redevelopment codes are
being rewritten to "relax the regulations and
restrictions. We will be doing away with park
ing requirements for businesses, allowing more
uses, cutting a lot of red tape, and changing
the zoning to better match the demands of the
marketplace," he says.

Additionally, in June, the CRA rolled
out its Anchor Tenant Incentive Program, with
the goal of attracting five anchor food and bev
erage tenants through a $250,000 loan-to-grant
program.

"We already have a number of really nice
restaurants downtown, and we want to build
off of that momentum," says Taylor. "We are

On the commercial side, the downtown's
office district is nearly fully leased, says Taylor.
"We also have a cluster of tech companies, and
are seeing more millennials entering the work
force in downtown Clearwater, which is very
promising for us. The CRA will also be fund
ing a co-working incubator space. We expect
this state-of-the-art facility to help us maintain
our competitiveness in the Tampa Bay area, in
respect to attracting new talent," he says.

(

Using many tools builds investor confidence - Continuedfrom page 1



Downtown IdeaExchange· www.DowntownDevelopment.com • November20174

rest of downtown." The Estuary,which replaces a previ
ous stormwater pond, will also provide an area for the
enjoyment and study of nature.

• The Green,which will be lined with native shade
trees and anchored by a "state-of-the-art new band
shell that will dramatically improve the event-going
experience at the park," say planners.

• Coachman Garden,featuring a playground
designed in collaboration with local artists, and located,
"steps from the Main Library, providing families with
another reason to visit and spend time downtown."

• And, finally, the Bluff Walk, which ties these
diverse experiences together via an active linear
promenade which provides views over the water and
connects the waterfront to the downtown.

"We're using a lot of tools and techniques to drive
more interest in our downtown and to ultimately attract
more people and businesses down here," Taylor says. "I
truly believe we're turning a corner here.The response
has been very promising. Now we just need to make
sure it's the right fit for our downtown. We're looking
to curate the right mix of downtown anchor tenants to
foster a sustainable and eclectic downtown."

"We're hosting craft beer festivals and
doing summer sidewalk sales and all those sorts
of things," Taylor says. Events hosted by other
local organizations are helping to activate the
downtown, as well.

The CRA is also working with Project for
Public Spaces to develop a public market concept
in an area of the downtown with a high number
of Hispanic residents. "We wanted to work with
that demographic and engage them through a
sort of incubator space for new entrepreneurs
who want to sell crafts, food, and other goods,"
says Taylor. "And this will become another social
destination. We are thinking about how we can
create these unique experiences downtown, that
when taken together, will start fostering that
dynamic and diverse downtown space."

Contact: Seth Taylor;Clearwater Community Rede
velopmentAgency, (727) 562-4072, seth.taylor@
myclearwater.com. I!lEI

Planning for a vibrant future
Change is also coming to the downtown Clear

water, FL,waterfront, with input from a community
visioning process. Imagine Clearwater, lire-engaged a
large number of Clearwater citizens and civic groups
and started them thinking about how to begin revitaliz
ing one of our greatest assets, which is our waterfront,"
says Seth Taylor,director of the Community Redevelop
ment Agency. Nearly 700 people attended community
workshops during the process.

In February,the Clearwater City Council approved
the Imagine Clearwater Master Plan, a $55 million
redevelopment initiative which aims to transform
underutilized oceanfront space from a convention
center and paved parking into a, "premier park destina
tion with active and passive uses."

If voters approve a referendum later this year, over
the next eight years, the waterfront will be transformed
to include:

• The Civic Gateway,a grand entry at the site of the
existing convention center, which will invite pedestrians
into the waterfront from downtown's main street.

• The Estuary,a "lush respite for visitors in search
of a quiet waterfront experience a short walk from the

Bringing in the fun
Several other efforts are underway to battle

that "institutional" misperception. "We are
launching a rebranding campaign with new
websites, social media, and community events
to rebrand downtown as a more fun destina
tion," Taylor says.

The CRA hosted a celebration in February
to kick off an ambitious activation program in
a downtown park. Tables, chairs, and umbrel
las have been installed to make the space more
comfortable for taking in the live music and
other programming.

ing initiative to help rebrand our downtown.
These places are often family friendly and
become real social destinations for a neighbor
hood. We're excited about the potential we
have here to foster a fun and exciting down
town environment."



5November 2017 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com

Selecting the appropriate technology
The many parking technologies on the

market vary vastly in their intent, functional
ity, style, cost, and purpose, Vidor says. "The
technology is evolving at a rapid pace - and
that can be overwhelming, especially if your
parking system needs an upgrade."

Upgrading parking technology is best
broken down into three steps, he says.

• Identifying the technology strategy
that is appropriate for each facility is the most
important step in the process, says Vidor.

"Because there are so many technologies
related to parking on the market, this can be a
daunting task. Before a technology is selected,
the property manager, owner, or operator needs
to understand what problem needs to be solved
and identify what opportunities can result from
deploying a new parking technology." With that
knowledge in hand, parking managers can then
search available technologies for the best fit,
Vidor says.

• Design the system. "Not all technolo
gies are plug and play and made to fit your
operation out of the box," he says. "You must
determine and identify the specific interfaces
with other key systems, such as employee iden
tification, validation programs, and the various
nuances of your operation."

• Procurement and installation. In many
cases, there are multiple manufacturers and

The flood of new technologies available
to manage parking systems is changing the
way downtown leaders think about the parking
experience for customers, tenants, and property
owners.

"Specifically, these new technologies are
transforming the way our tenants and custom
ers find, access, and pay for parking," says
parking consultant Andrew Vidor in a recent
article for the Colorado Real Estate Jour-
nal. Organizations and city departments with
parking oversight can now leverage new tech
nologies capable of managing a parking system
to its fullest potential, he says.

"One technology quickly taking hold in the
industry - and rightfully so - is parking guid
ance systems," says Vidor. This technology no
longer requires a driver to search up and down
every aisle looking for an open space. "Today,
wired and wireless sensors can monitor usage of
individual parking spaces throughout the facility
to determine where open parking is available.
That information is then wirelessly commu
nicated and displayed via LED signage at key
locations prior to entering the facility, and then
once again inside the facility." Signs direct driv
ers to open spaces, while red and green lights
over each space also indicate availability.

"Mobile applications are being integrated
with these systems to provide real-time parking
availability information in advance of driv-
ers arriving at their destination," Vidor says. .
"Imagine leaving for an event downtown and
knowing which parking facilities have available
parking, as well as the parking rate you can
expect to pay. This provides a much more con
venient experience for customers using your
facility and provides [garage] owners with an
opportunity to reach out directly to prospective
customers before they arrive."

Parking access and payment strategies have
also seen advances. 'Today, property managers
can utilize a variety of technological tools that
permit them to operate more efficiently, effec
tively, and profitably, while providing better
service," says Vidor.

Parking

Older facilities become more user friendly with technology
One area of parking that has particularly

benefited from technological innovation is
access and revenue control, he says. Integra
tion of mobile payment platforms has been
added into digital parking access and revenue
control systems over the last few years. "With
other technology, parking operators can send
customers a QR code, which can be used to
enter and exit the parking system in advance of
their arrival," says Vidor. "Another technology
option is the ability to pay for parking with a
version of a mobile wallet. These capabilities
significantly reduce cash handling, staffing, and
supply costs."



Downtown Idea Exchange· www.DowntownDevelopment.com • November 2017

and beverage experiences, as well as a bike
storage facility, 24-hour security, and 175 com
mercial parking spots.

"The goal of the project was to activate a
previously desolate area of the South End by
making it an engaging, active park," says Ted
Tye, a managing partner at National Develop
ment, which operates the park. "Working with
MassDOT, we embraced the art culture of the
area while creating a space that could be used
both passively and actively. The Underground
at Ink Block provides a connection to our suc
cessful Ink Block project across the street, and
also provides a connection between the South
End and South Boston."

Art is seen throughout the park in a collec
tion that Tye says is, "already attracting national
attention." Prior to the opening in September, a
cadre of nationally known artists transformed
150,000 square feet of walls within the park
during the Underground Mural Project. Other
artwork includes colorful ribbons painted on a
sidewalk leading to the park.

It took five years of planning, permitting,
design, construction and leasing led by Mass
DOT in cooperation with the community, the
city, Boston Planning & Development Agency,
and the Federal Highway Administration to
bring the project to fruition. National Develop
ment, which also developed Ink Block, was
selected to operate Underground via a public
bid process.

Initial work was done by MassDOT, and
involved "substantial community input," says

6

A desolate highway underpass has been transformed into a walkable park that hosts
events and public art.

A new park on eight acres beneath an
Interstate 93 underpass now links two down
town neighborhoods in Boston, MA (est. pop.
617,594), while also providing an active urban
space, cultural attraction, and parking amenity.

Landscaped pedestrian boardwalks and
bicycle paths along the Fort Point Channel
create new connections between communities
previously separated by highway infrastruc
ture. This new park adds to the transformation
of the area known as Ink Block, a seven
building mixed-use community that has revi
talized the New York Streets section of
the South End.

Amenities at the park, known as Under
ground at Ink Block, include world-class street
art, a dog park, curated retail, fitness, and food

Repurposed underpass provides connectivity
and public gathering space

and implementation, he says.
"If completed properly, this three-step

process will give your parking customers
a more pleasant parking experience and
make your day-to-day management of the
parking system more efficient and effective,"
Vidor says. m

Amenities & Activation

vendors who can provide the solution. "It's
best to identify who they are and allow them
to quote the project," says Vidor. A technology
upgrade also should include communication
with end users - including education on
the new technologies and their benefits and
impacts - well in advance of installation



7November 2017 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com

Phase I work includes creating additional space and amenities at
downtown corners.

A new road, Town Hall Plaza, was also
created to serve as a connection between
Millburn Avenue and another busy thor
oughfare to help ease traffic and improve the
shopping experience and commercial viabil
ity of the area.

"Creating walkable
and vibrant downtowns
is the trend across the
country - and with
this project, Millburn
is ahead of the curve.
While we recognize
that it is still very early,

Summit at Rutgers University. The township
was selected because of the number of changes
it has made in accordance with national
Complete Streets policy, including parklets,
streetscaping, and widened sidewalks.

"Millburn's commitment to a compre
hensive Complete Streets design and imple
mentation is impressive," says Charles Brown,
chair of the 2017 Complete Streets Summit
Planning Committee. "The township is not only
investing in safety improvements, but creating a
vibrant and active downtown for all to enjoy."

A three-phase implementation plan was
developed with a robust series of traffic calm
ing and other improvements that include
road-diets, curb bump-outs, bicycle parking,
widened comers, high-visibility crosswalks,
pedestrian lighting, signage, and more.

Work on phase I began in July. A stretch
of Main Street was converted into a downtown
event space featuring widened sidewalks, a
concrete roadbed, and overhead strands of
lights. The adjacent Millburn Avenue was then
improved to include wider sidewalks, fresh
landscaping with more than 40 new street trees,
comer bump-outs, and high-visibility cross
walks. Modem traffic signals and timing were
also incorporated into the design to improve
traffic flow.

Phased Complete Streets project improves safety,
accessibility, and more - Continuedfrom page 1

Contact: Ted Tye, National Development,
(617) 527-9800. m

move of its headquarters to Boston, is the pri
mary event sponsor," says Tye. That company
is sponsoring a series of fitness events at the
park this fall.

Underground events are promoted via the
park's website and social media. "This area
of Boston is booming with residents and new
businesses," says Tye. "Underground at Ink
Block provides a new and much-needed adult
'play area' that supports those who live and
work here."

Tye. HAsustainable design was created with
landscaping and drainage that would work well
in this unique urban setting. The $8.5 million
construction project was primarily funded by
MassDOT, with the cost supported by a long
term lease to National Development.

"An active event schedule is planned for
the spring," Tye says. "Based on the success of
our opening event, which drew approximately
4,000 people, future events will focus on art,
food, music, and fitness.

"Reebok, which made a strong commit
ment to funding Underground as part of the



Downtown IdeaExchange. www.DowntownDevelopment.com • November2017

• Developing fitness options. While most
of the new office and residential buildings in
the district offer private gyms, there weren't
a lot of options available to the public. "We
worked with a building owner to have a yoga
studio built out in a small retail space that they
were not using," says Brooks. "It wasn't ideal
for other retail uses because it was a little bit
hard to access. We did outreach to hire a man
ager and get the pop-up started."

The BID also helped incubate the yoga
studio, assisting with startup costs and logis
tics. After the first year, the manager took
NoMa Yoga over as her own business. "It's a
wonderful success story. It filled a gap in the
neighborhood and started a local independent
business, as well," Brooks says.

• Enhancing nightlife. The BID worked
with entrepreneurs and property owners to
find temporary space for a new beer garden.
When the first pop-up site was no longer

The NoMa Business Improvement Dis
trict, north of Capital Hill and Union Station
in Washington, D.C. (est. pop. 617,996), is
rapidly transitioning from mostly office space
to a popular mixed-use area. The BID now has
close to 5,000 residential units, with another
1,595 under construction.

As the district transitioned, it became clear
that retail and restaurant options were l~ck
ing. To enhance the district and create a more
well-rounded live, work, play destination, the
BID worked with landlords, entrepreneurs, and
nonprofits to develop creative partnerships and
launch new businesses.

Much of this work grows out of the BIDs
bi-annual community survey, which helps iden
tify the needs of the growing neighborhood,
says Galin Brooks, NoMa BID's planning and
economic development director. The BID saw
pop-ups in vacant spaces as a way to test and
nurture a range of new ventures.

Community surveys help identify needs of
rapidly growing neighborhood

The timing of the final four-week project
for Phase I was less than ideal due to two
nearby schools resuming classes. To mitigate
the inconvenience of having construction
underway at the beginning of the school
year, crews agreed to be cognizant of school
traffic. Deliveries to contractors were limited
to the hours after students arrived at school
and before they were dismissed for the day.
There were no lane closures, and traffic flow
was not disrupted or detoured. Additionally,
police officers were on hand during critical
periods of construction to assist pedestrians
crossing the street.

Despite the timing issues, positive impacts
of the Phase I Complete Streets project were
already being noted in September, including a
reduction in average roadway speeds down to
29 mph, and a 23-percent reduction in motor
vehicle and pedestrian accidents. lID]

Business Recruitment & Retention

Easing construction woes
To address parking and other concerns

expressed by residents and store owners,
Millburn Township added new 15-minute
free parking spaces on Millburn Avenue.
The township also improved upon a Smart
phone app, MPay2Park, which allows
motorists to easily pay for parking on their
phones, eliminating time spent at parking
meters. Convenience fees were removed from
the app.

we are very optimistic about the impact it is
having already," says David Lustberg, CEO
and Principal of Arterial, a New Jersey-based
planning and design firm. "In addition to the
pedestrian safety aspects, the project provides
a canvas for the town and merchants to use
to energize the downtown through creative
placemaking, pedestrian activity, and events."

8

DowntownDevelopment.com

To view Millburn's Com
plete Streets documents,
visit our website and click
on Web Extras.

----------------------------------- ..- .... --~----.-



9

DowntownDevelopment.com

For information about the
NoMa BID's successful
pop-up, The Lobby Project,
visit our website and click
on Web Extras.

November 2017 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com

Cedar Rapids, IA (est. pop. 124,417),
saw its first green roof in 2010 during the
conversion of a warehouse into condomini
ums. The 7,400-square-foot project includes
low-growing, low-maintenance sedum and
native plants. According to Jason John-
son, public affairs specialist for the Natural

Increasingly, city centers are introduc
ing green infrastructure that is both attractive
and efficient at addressing federal and state
stormwater runoff mandates. Projects include
green roofs, street trees, rain gardens, and
permeable pavement that captures and infil
trates rain as it falls.

Clean& Safe

Green projects manage stormwater, improve aesthetics

Contact: Galin Brooks, NoMa BID, (202) 810-
0087, gbrooks@nomabid.org. IIDlI

season alone, NoMa Junction saw over 13,500
visitors at more than 20 events.

"We are now trying to get a farmers market
into the neighborhood because that's another
high priority for folks," says Brooks. "We also
see public art and activation of unused spaces
as a priority."

Pop-up events and businesses are promoted
via the NoMa BID's newsletter, which goes
out to nearly 11,000people, as well as social
media posts, press releases, and providing
details to property managers throughout the
district.

"Our team of ambassadors distributes
postcards and information about new pop-ups,"
Brooks says. "They have a kiosk where they
give out information, along with lollipops, so
that we get more engagement."

Knowing what spaces are available and
what types of ventures will succeed in those
spaces is key, Brooks says, adding, "I would
say we have been successful most of the time
because of our ability to be opportunistic.
It's also useful to have a plan, goals, and an
understanding of the demands in your com
munity - but you have to be flexible in this
arena. Otherwise, you won't be able to make
things work."

Partnerships are also vital. "You can't
make this happen if you don't have property
owners and providers you can call on to try out
some unusual new idea."

available, "we worked with them to find a
new home in the neighborhood," Brooks says.
The three partners worked to establish a true
garden atmosphere, with greenery surrounding
the outdoor seating area. "They are doing very
well, and it's a lovely little respite in summer
in D.C.," she says.

• Introducing food trucks. An underuti
lized parking lot became the site of the NoMa
Lunch Box food truck pod until that site went
under construction. "Until that happened we
were able to activate the space with music and
games," says Brooks. The site owners even
sponsored a pop-up picnic area, which operated
on Fridays at lunchtime and attracted 3,000
visitors during the two months that it was open.

• Finding a home for a nonprofit. The
NoMa BID also brought Carpe Librum, a
"gently-used bookstore" that is the fundraising
arm of a local literacy group, to a vacant retail
space in the neighborhood. The sale of inex
pensive books, CDs, and DVDs filled a gap
in the NoMa retail scene, and during its first
season, raised over $53,000 for the literacy
nonprofit.

The BID also worked to fill some gaps that
were outside of the commercial realm. The
district transformed a former bus station into
the NoMa Junction @ Storey Park outdoor
event space. The BID partnered with hip-hop
nonprofit Words, Beats & Life, which painted
the largest piece of public art in the city at that
time at the site. NoMa hosts dozens of events
each season at this venue. During the first

(



Downtown Idea Exchange· www.DowntownDevelopment.com • November 2017

Trust Fund, a North Carolina nonprofit, to
help pay for the project. Fayetteville's storm
water fund will pay for about $110,000,
with the rest of the money coming from the
general fund.

Traffic lanes were reduced within the
project area from five in one area and three
in another down to two, based on traffic
counts indicating that more were not needed.
Seven-foot-wide sidewalks were converted to
lO-foot-wide multi-use trails. Some park-
ing areas now feature interlocking concrete
pavers that allow water to be absorbed into
the ground.

Other storm water control measures
include permeable pavement, with three levels
of stones which filter the water as it drains
through, as well as suspended pavement,
which consists of a crate-like system filled
with specialized soil. Trees planted in this area
absorb the nutrients from the water, and have
space for roots to grow, allowing the pavement
above to remain stable.

The Green Street project also includes
bio-infiltration bump-outs, which look like
landscaped islands, but instead of a mound
of dirt, feature holes filled with engineered
soil that can filter water, and plants selected
for their ability to tolerate both flood and
drought. All of the measures work together in
an innovative process so that if water bypasses
one system, it is captured by the next, say city
engineers.

"We hope this project will generate more
economic development in the area for poten
tial redevelopment, which eventually will
increase the activity in the area ... and allow
the city to expand the downtown district," says
Fayetteville City Engineer Giselle Rodriguez,
noting that this project is the city's opportunity
to serve as a model for other municipalities
and organizations that would like to imple
ment similar efforts.

The project paid off last fall, when the
new storm water system handled 15 inches of
rain dumped on the city center by Hurricane
Matthew with no runoff issues. And this June,
the city's Stormwater Division received the
Walk the Walk Clean Water award from the
local nonprofit Sustainable Sandhills. I!lEI

Resources Conservation Service, the roof
will reduce stormwater runoff from a 1.25-
inch rain by 50 to 80 percent. Any water
that does run off will be filtered, and thus
cleaner. And more recently, the city's new
library was constructed to include the first
publicly accessible green roof, offering
conservation-based education to visitors, as
well as stormwater reduction. The 24,000
square-foot green roof features rainwater
harvesting for irrigation, and the parking lot
surrounding the building is constructed with
pervious paving, and below-ground stormwa
ter collection chambers.

The town of Franklin, MA (est. pop.
31,852), is addressing stormwater concerns
through tree wells, road narrowing, and rain
gardens. Since 2010, the town has incorpo
rated rain gardens into infrastructure projects
throughout the downtown as part of its Soak
it Up Franklin initiative. And the Residential
Rain Garden Project, a collaboration between
the town's public works department and the
Charles River Watershed Association, provides
residents with opportunities to attend free rain
garden training and supports building of rain
gardens at participants' homes.

And Fayetteville, NC (est. pop. 200,564),
built its first green street in 2014 along a two
block section of a downtown thoroughfare
already slated for redevelopment.

'This is not a conventional streetscape
project," says the city's Engineering & Infra
structure Department. 'This is the first green
street in the city. It incorporates stormwater
management features along the road through
an innovative design that provides great envi
ronmental and aesthetic rewards."

The two blocks were redeveloped 'as a
Greenscape project, utilizing Low Impact
Development (LID) technology. LID is an
approach to land development that works
with nature to manage storm water as close
to its source as possible. An impaired creek
in the city will benefit from improved water
quality.

The $1.3 million project aimed to allow
85 percent of the rainfall to percolate into
the surrounding soil. The city got a $309,500
grant from the Clean Water Management

10

DowntownDevelopment.com

To view a video and
documents about the
Fayetteville Green Street,
visit our website and
click on Web Extras.



11

~ MAIL: 36MidvaleRoad.Suite 2E
Mountain Lakes,NJ 07046

~ FAX: (973)402-6056
tr PHONE:(973)265-2300 I

@ EMAIL: info@DowntownDevelopmentcom I

• North America, $227. Elsewhere,$257 _J
(includes international delivery).

-------~-.---.- ..--..--.--.-------~---~-----------

EMAIL

PHONE

CITY

I
I

---zIP----1

-----------I
I

STATE

ADDRESS

FIRM/ORGANIZATION -

TITLE

NAME

Please starVrenew my one-year
1 subscription to Downtown Idea
Exchange for $227,*

ISSN 0012-5822

Downtown
Idea Exchange

A publication of the
Downtown Development Center

36 Midvale Road, Suite 2E
Mountain Lakes, NJ 07046

Phone: (973) 265-2300 • Fax: (973) 402-6056
Email: info@DowntownDevelopment.com
Website: www.DowntownDevelopment.com

Editor
Sheila Grant, ext. 110

sgrant@DowntownDevelopment.com

Technical Editor
Laurence A. Alexander

Customer Service
Mary Pagliaroli, ext. 101

mpagliaroli@DowntownDevelopment.com

Reprints and Permissions
Michael DeWitt, ext. 107

mjdewitt@DowntownDevelopment.com

Publisher
Margaret DeWitt, ext. 106

msdewitt@DowntownDeve[opment.com
Downtown ItktJ Exchange- ispublisbed monthly by
the Downtown Development Center. The Center
provides news, information and data for successful
downtown revitalization through its newsletters. books.
reports. and website.

') Alexander Communications Group
• e 2017 Alexander Communications
GrouP. Inc. All rights reserved. No part of this pub
lication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval
system. or transmiued in any form or by any means,
electronic. mechanical. photocopying or otherwise,
without the prior written permission ofAlexander
Communications Group.

November2017 • Downtown IdeaExchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com

To combat an increasing number
of commercial vacancies in the
State Street retail corridor, the Santa
Barbara (CA) City Council has
approved a six-month pilot program
that aims to streamline the permit
and review process. The enhanced
services include:

• Dedicated staff and phone line
for State-Street-related businesses.

• Dedicated staff to function as
downtown liaisons. The Planning
Division will designate two staff
members to help guide downtown

Pilot program streamlines
permit process

the value of the plan. These include
street closure for events and imple
mentation of special lighting.

More costly improvements will
follow, including developing and
implementing a festival street design
and acquiring additional rights of
way.The sidewalks on the proposed
festival street are primarily on pri
vate property.

Festival street will add
flexible event space

Earlier this year, the
Issaquah, WA, council
approved the city's Downtown
Streetscape Plan. The plan
seeks to increase pedestrian
friendliness, support local
businesses, create a consis
tent downtown character, and
make Olde Town a place where
people enjoy spending time.

The plan includes creation
of a festival street - a street
designated for recurring tem
porary closure for pedestrian
activities. The festival street
allows for gatherings, community
building, and visitor attraction in
a part of the city that doesn't have
the need or land availability for a
permanent public gathering space.

The plan notes that the Alder
Street location (perpendicular to
Front Street), is especially well
suited to use as a festival street:

• It is a non-arterial within
downtown that connects Front Street
to surrounding parking and residen
tial neighborhoods.

• It is part of the Front Street
commercial area and, as a festival
street, could reinforce adjacent com
mercial and cultural activities.

• As a festival street, Alder
Street can enhance the quality of
the pedestrian environment with
out conflicting with desired traffic
circulation.

The creation of the festival
street is currently considered part of
Phase II of the overall project. But
the report recommends low-cost
improvements that could be imple
mented quickly and demonstrate

Idea Exchange

-------------------------------------



Downtown Idea Exchange. www.DowntownDevelopment.com • November 2017

they would partner with local devel
opers and property owners. This is
especially true for sites that are under
utilized or sitting vacant," she says.

To read the full article, visit
DowntownDevelopment.com
and click on Web Extras. I!EI

should be prepared to take the first
steps in pursuing these relationships.
"Communities that have federal
property should assess the status
and viability of those sites, and then
engage federal officials in discussing
the future of those properties, just as

DIY wayfinding encourages walking
In an effort to encourage walking, new signs in downtown Wausau, WI,

show just how convenient the city center is. The signs indicate the direction
and provide a walking time to many activities and points of interest.

Elizabeth Brodek, executive director of the Wausau River District, tells
USA Today that the signs can help people understand that they don't need
to drive to get somewhere a few blocks _away.

"H's literally just a couple minutes ofwalkingto get to some of the
places that they really want to be and some of the places that they might
not even know about that they should check out," she says.

The organization Walk [Your City] has inspired similar campaigns in
dozens of cities. The group provides background information, step-by-step
planning tools, and signs for creating walking campaigns.

At its website, the organization
explains some of the benefits of
the program:

• encourages trip-swapping
to decrease vehicle use;

• supports local businesses
and commercial districts;

• boosts social connection
and "eyes on the street";

• acts as a behavioral nudge to
!l1ake healthier transportation
choices;

• shows a community's commitment to walking and biking;
• kick starts bigger conversations around walkability.
To learn more, visit walkyourcity.org.

12

From post offices to court
houses, federal offices can be hubs
of activity that attract a steady
flow of employees and visitors. To
keep these government functions
downtown and incorporate them
into revitalization efforts requires
strong partnerships between local
community leaders and the federal
government, says Denise Turner
Roth, former head of the U.S. Gen
eral Services Administration.

Writing in Governing maga
zine, Turner Roth stresses that cities

To make the most of federal
buildings, partnership is
essential

business owners and commercial
real estate brokers through the
discretionary review processes. Like
wise, the Building & Safety Division
will create a single point of contact
for building permit processing.

• Applications within the pilot
program area will receive priority
placement on design review board
agendas.

• Pre-Application review and
expedited plan check of ADA, trash,
maximum occupancy, and restroom
fixture counts. With increasingly
complex accessibility laws and the
presence of three Certified Access
Specialists (CASp) on staff, the
Building & Safety Division staff will
offer (for a fee) a code compliance
assessment of existing tenant spaces,
including a CASp review, to identify
and inform potential tenants and
building owners of improvements
that will be required by law during
the next tenant improvement permit
process.

Idea Exchange



© 2017 Alexander Communications Group, Inc. All rights reserved.

replicated in smaller cities such as
Lynn, to attract more visitors and
bolster the local economy.

The mural festival and other
Beyond Walls art projects are
funded through a wide variety of
sources. Beyond Walls met its goal
of raising $50,000 on the Patronic
ity civic crowdfunding platform
within two weeks this spring. Those
funds were matched by MassDe
velopment's Commonwealth Places

(Continued on page 7)

Downtown Lynn, MA (est. pop.
90,329), is seeing a huge investment in
revitalization via the arts. Recently, the
10-day Beyond Walls mural festival
changed the face of downtown, with
more than 2,700 visitors attending the
Rock the Block grand finale event.

Beyond Walls founder Alfred
Wilson says he is inspired by art-cen
tric revitalization in cities like Miami,
FL, Philadelphia, PA, and the King's
Cross neighborhood of London, Eng
land. He believes those results can be

PATHWAYS AND PUBLIC SPACES

Mural event draws crowds

While working on its strategic
plan about five years ago, the Down
town Windsor Business Improvement
Association realized that its "very
lively and thriving hospitality dis
trict" was lacking in retail options,
says Executive Director Debi
Croucher. Since then, a number of
new retail attraction tools have been
developed to entice merchants to
downtown Windsor, ON, Canada (est.
pop. 210,891).

"We approached the city, the
chamber of commerce, the develop
ment corporation, and everybody

ECONOMIC6ROWTH

Ambitious retail recruitment program
includes many facets

@DowntownDevelopment.com

Biscayne Green Full Project
Presentation

Downtown Windsor Retail
Recruitment Presentation &

Prospectus
Downtown Scottsdale Brand
Perceptions Presentation

Inside this issue
Pilot project transforms
medians into programmed
green spaces. Demonstration
removes barrier, creates
destination ••••••••••••••• 2

Interactive website, road
show, and more aid public
engagement process. Clear,
consistent communication
eliminates surprises, builds
buy-in ••.•.•.••••••••.••• 5

Seven Shop Local tips.
Capture more holiday shop
ping revenue ••••••••••.••• 6

Motivations and barriers
to downtown visits. Market
study reveals word of mouth
most frequent information
source .•••••••••••••••••• 9

Idea Exchange. Combating
construction disruptions,
Video series promotes
small businesses, Ensuring
convenient parking for
customers •••••••••••••• 11

Vol. 64, No. 12
December 2017

else we could think of for various
materials that could be put together
in a prospectus to go out champion
ing our city center, but none of those
bodies had materials that could be
packaged," Croucher says. Instead,
the BIA, with input from these
stakeholders, Statistics Canada, and
Downtown Residents Association
Windsor, developed its own retail
marketing materials.

During the fall of 2015, the BIA
began distributing its new Down
town Windsor Retail Prospectus,

(Continued 011 page 3)



Downtown Idea Exchange· www.DowntownDevelopment.com • December 20172

Temporary projects require time
and effort

Despite its temporary nature, Biscayne
Green required a significant effort in order to
effectively win over the public and municipal
leaders. The DDA began assembling teams
to address outreach, planning, design, execu
tion, and programming early in 2016. "We
then mobilized and reached out to community
partners and other government agencies for the
necessary support," says the organization. "The
various spaces planned for this project were
programmed following a series of community
outreach efforts to gather people's input about
the various design elements they wanted to see
included."

By November, 2016, the plan was final
ized. After months of coordination to involve
seven public agencies, acquire donations and
more than 30 sponsors, and build a volunteer
base, the build-out of the installation began on
January 2, with the Grand Opening just four
days later. Seed funding came from the Knight
Foundation and The Miami Foundation.

Two parking lots were transformed into
active, programmed public spaces. Design ele
ments included flexible green space, a dog park,
a children's Imagination Playground, exercise
stations, games for all ages, a terraced seating
area, entertainment space with a stage and seat
ing, a food truck area with benches, ambiance
lighting, on-street parking, a bikeshare station,

potential visitors as possible, the DDA con
ducted a media campaign promoting Biscayne
Green as a community destination. "Through
out the three weeks, much enthusiasm was
generated, and we encouraged conversations on
social media to develop demand for the long
term project," says the organization. In addition
to 243 survey participants, Biscayne Green also
netted the organization strong media coverage,
17.7 million media impressions, and an award
for Excellence in the Public Space category
from the International Downtown Association.

One goal of the 2025 Downtown Miami
Master Plan is to transform the downtown
stretch of Biscayne Boulevard into an urban
thoroughfare featuring a pedestrian promenade,
an emphasis on public transit, and bicycle
friendly infrastructure.

"Eight lanes of traffic, median parking
lots, and unsafe pedestrian crossings show the
amounts of space dedicated to cars, creating
visual and physical barriers through the heart of
downtown," says the Miami Downtown Devel
opment Authority. The DDA's 20-day Biscayne

DowntownDevelopment.comGreen project temporarily transformed medians
To view the Biscayne currently used as parking lots into space for the
Green Ful~Proj~~t community to meet and connect.
prebs~nttattodn,1~lskltour "An objective of Biscayne Green was to
we Sl e an c IC on
Web Extras. bring awareness of the barrier effect Biscayne

Boulevard represents to the community and
to showcase how these spaces can be turned
around into a local destination for green space,
entertainment, and community," says the DDA.
Biscayne Green also aimed to build public
support for more permanent changes to the
boulevard, and allowed the DDA to gather input
from users on-site during the 20-day interven
tion, which included not only green space, but
35 events which attracted 20,000 attendees.

"We were able to capture real-time input
from residents and visitors, of which 97 per
cent recorded positive comments on our Visitor
Survey," says the DDA. To reach as many

PATHWAYS AND PUBLIC SPACES

Pilot project transforms medians into
programmed green space



3

To view the Down
town Windsor BIA's
retail recruitment
presentation and
prospectus, visit our
website and click on
Web Extras.

DowntownDevelopment.com

December 2017 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com

says Croucher. "One of these initiatives is
the Commercial Rent Subsidy Program."
This strategic funding tool is offered only
to the types of retailers identified as most
desirable in the downtown, she says. "We
are very clear about what it is we are looking
for, so applications are submitted to the BIA,
reviewed, vetted, and discussed, and if they
are found to be in compliance, applicants are
awarded a 50-percent match for their rent, up
to $625 a month for a period of one year."

Eligible retail offerings include baked
goods, pet supplies, apparel, groceries, home
decor, hardware, toys, books, and more, as
well as quality-of-life additions such as an
independent movie theater and a boutique
gym.

"Th~t has been a really interesting
catalyst for us in filling up vacant storefronts
downtown, and it's the types of businesses
that don't currently exist in the city center
and meet the needs of people who already
work or reside here, or are visiting the down
town," Croucher says, noting that a broader
variety of retail supports guests and confer
ence attendees drawn to the many hotels in
the city center. While the downtown is still
predominantly a hospitality district, "It has

Municipal support is key
City support has also fed into Wind-

sor's retail recruitment success. "In support
of our initiative, the city has put into effect a
number of other funding streams within the
downtown to support retail in the city center,"

which, "displays information in an engaging,
easily digestible manner," says the organiza
tion. The document provides a wide range of
demographic data, and paints the city center
as a dynamic, livable area. The downtown's
knowledge-based economy, quality of life, arts
and culture, tourism, and other assets are also
highlighted.

At the same time, the BIA launched a
dedicated retail attraction website which mir
rors the prospectus, and also includes listings
of leasing opportunities and information on
financial incentive programs.

To supplement these efforts, the BIA
conducted a radio advertising campaign airing
in southwestern Ontario and Detroit, digital
media campaigns with placements in the Retail
Merchants Association and Windsor Chamber
of Commerce e-newsletters, and a Facebook
campaign targeting audiences in southwestern
Ontario and Michigan.

Ambitious retail recruitment program includes
many facets - Continued/rampage 1

By prioritizing people over cars, the project
elevated the conversation about transforming
the boulevard from a barrier to a destination
while also making downtown a more walkable,
accessible, and connected place. "Streets define
the downtown experience, as they are the
public sphere that downtown residents, work
ers, and visitors see, share, and use every day,"
says the DDA. "Downtown's future success
depends on providing a variety of transporta
tion options and the supporting infrastructure
to sustain a highly mobile, accessible, and con
nected urban core." m

car-share drop-off stations, space for relaxation,
and enhanced pedestrian crossings.

"People utilized the park throughout the
day, every day of the week, as they discovered
the pop-up park and the oasis it represented in
the center of downtown," says the DDA. "From
live musical performances, happy hours, fitness
classes, outdoor movies, and cultural events,
these free community events invited people to
take a sneak peek into the future of downtown
Miami and inspired the community to stay
engaged in order to keep this vision moving
forward."



Downtown Idea Exchange· www.DowntownDevelopment.com • December 20174

Some challenges remain
While most small retail spaces downtown

are now occupied, "we have a number of very
large vacant properties in excess of 5,000
square feet," says Croucher. Some properties
are viewed as investment opportunities by
out-of-town owners. Until recently, a vacant
property rebate, "had been almost an induce
ment to keep the building vacant until they
could find a long-term, stable tenant," says
Croucher. And some owners are holding out to
see what impact the expansion of local univer
sities into the city center will have on property
values, she says.

"They are opening a school of music
and a school of creative arts by January, and
there's a huge push to bring the law school
downtown, as well," says Croucher. "Some
of these large vacant buildings are in close
proximity."

More residents, and younger residents,
will also drive the need for more new retail
and service providers in the city center. The
BIA would love to attract an Apple Store, says
Croucher, and the area also needs walk-in
medical care, suites for medical practices, and
a specialty grocer offering fresh fruits, veg
etables, and meats, as well as prepared foods.

Contact: Debi Croucher. Downtown Windsor BIA.
(519) 252-5723, debitiodowntownwindsor.ca. lID

and Community Improvement Plan, approved
in October. The plan extends beyond the BIA
boundaries, but the majority of merchants who
will avail themselves of new funding oppor
tunities provided by the plan will be located
in the city center, Croucher says. "It's going
to be a huge catalyst. The plan has 39 recom
mendations and the city council has approved
37 of them."

New offerings include incentives for
developing second and third floor spaces
above retail into residential units. Upper
story housing is another thing the downtown
has been lacking. "It's really exciting to see
the city step up and take a lead on this, and
it means so much more will be done," says
Croucher.

Following that lead, the BIA has joined the International
Council of Shopping Centers and attends its events to build up
its own retail connections and to share the Inewprospectus,
providing prospective tenants with information about all that
downtown has to offer.

Look to other successful programs for advice
Before embarking on its ambitious retail attraction

campaign, the Downtown Windsor Business Improvement Asso
ciation in Windsor, ON, Canada, sought the advice of another
downtown organization that had seen "tremendous success,"
says Executive Director Debi Croucher.

The London (ON, Canada) Economic Development
Corporation hired a retired mall manager to oversee its retail
attraction efforts. That individual identified vacant space,
worked with landlords and property owners to identify neces
sary improvements, and utilized his professional contacts to
reach out to regional and national retailers.

''They also got tremendous media coverage," says
Croucher. ''Thafs what got the ball rolling for us. They were
incredibly helpful and informative. And they had such success
because they had gone with an individual with experience and
connections."

changed as a result of these efforts, as well
as investments the municipality has made of
late," she says.

An influx of downtown college cam
puses is also adding feet to the street and
making the area more dynamic. "We are
starting to see a really positive transforma
tion," says Croucher.

In addition to the rent subsidy program,
the BIA offers facade improvement grants to
new businesses which meet the guidelines.
'That really does help them in setting up
shop in the downtown," Croucher says. And
the municipal government is now offering
funding for interior renovation costs. "One
of the things the BIA does not do is interi
ors, so it's really great that the city has done
that," she says.

Another way the municipal government
is supporting retail recruitment is its new
Downtown Windsor Enhancement Strategy



5December 2017 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com

Imagine Greeley meetings.
"We started our outreach efforts

with a kickoff meeting on March 3,
which was an all-day event," says John Barnett,
the city's long range planner. "We did a number
of exercises, including a thought wall. We gave
people subject areas and asked them to write
down things that were challenges, things we
needed to do, and also things that were going
well. We also did mapping exercises."

Next came a series of themed focus group
meetings in May and June that drew 50 to
60 participants to explore the five key topics:
housing access, growth and city form, eco
nomic health and diversification, livability, and
public capital and operations planning. "So we
went through five meetings with those folks
and really zeroed in on a number of things,"
says Barnett. "Once we got the focus group
things done, we began to pull together ideas
and goal statements and went back out to the
public again on August 2 and 3 and did another
round ofcommunity discussions."

Based on all of the public input gathered,
a draft plan was developed. "We turned that
loose for internal review among staff and
departments likely to be partners in imple
menting the plan," Barnett says. "On October
26 and 30, we [had] two more public meet
ings to talk about the draft, get feedback, and
make sure we are touching base and that
things are okay."

IWe have done our best
not to surprise anybody. II

Keep planning collaborative
and inclusive

The Imagine Greeley website introduces
visitors to the initiative and its goals, while the
Get Involved page invites participants to take
a survey, explore the list of scheduled outreach
events, and sign up for project updates. The
survey remained open for several months, clos
ing at the end of August and seeing more than
350 participants. The website also hosts links
to project documents, background information,
related studies, and outcomes of

Recent population growth in Greeley, CO
(from 92,889 during the 2010 U.S. Census to
an estimated 103,990), has sparked an ambi
tious planning process. Transparency and
broad public engagement efforts are credited
with building strong public support.

The Imagine Greeley initiative was
launched by the city this year to gather public
input and explore what the future Greeley
will look and feel like, and what steps are
needed to maintain the current quality of
life going forward. A dedicated, interac-
tive Imagine Greeley website was launched
last January, and an ambitious calendar of
meetings, focus groups, and road show pre
sentations, as well as an online survey, have
taken place this year.

Two distinct but interrelated efforts are
underway. First is an update to the city's
2060 Comprehensive Plan which will inform
decisions about public and private growth and
development over the next 10 to 20 years. As
part of Imagine Greeley, the city is seeking
input on what aspects of the plan are work
ing well, or not, as well as any potential gaps
that need to be addressed. Key focus areas for
the Imagine Greeley process include hous
ing access, growth and city form, economic
health and diversification, livability, and
public capital and operations planning.

Second, the city seeks to identify prior
ity community improvements, a process last
completed two decades ago, which culmi
nated in construction of several downtown
attractions, parks and trails, the police head
quarters, a history museum, and expansion of
a community center.

As part of Imagine Greeley, the city is
asking residents to share their top priori-
ties for Greeley's to-do list over the next 20
years. The information will guide capital
improvement planning and public investment
campaigns designed to fund major commu
nity improvement projects.

COMMUNICATION

Interactive website, road show, and more
aid public engagement process



Downtown Idea Exchange· www.DowntownDevelopment.com • December 20176

Robbins, principal associate for economic
development at the National League of Cities,
in a recent Cities Speak blog.

Convene your local business owners and
follow their creative lead. "Use your role as
a convener to help local businesses connect,
collaborate, and feel empowered to establish
creative marketing tactics to attract holiday
shoppers," writes Robbins. For example, small
business owners in Edmond, OK, developed a
small business passport that offers incentives
and prizes to shoppers that receive a stamp at
multiple stores.

Develop a "Made In" branding cam
paign. Shoppers are increasingly looking for
unique, handmade items from their hometowns
to purchase for themselves and as gifts, Rob
bins says. One way to indicate to shoppers that
an item is made locally is to create a branding

live there. It will be 180 pages or so, includ
ing the goals, objectives and strategies. All
of the background will be in separate appen
dixes so that if someone wants to download
the plan, it will be hefty, but reasonable. And
if they want to get into the weeds, they are
all there."

Greeley stakeholders are becoming
comfortable with the city's planning process
due to a recent bicycle master plan, a parks,
trails, and open lands plan, and a strategic
transit master plan. The city expects the same
people who supported those initiatives to also
support its move toward Smart Growth in the
updated 2060 Comprehensive Plan. "Other
communities have had much more contro
versy. We've worked really hard to avoid that
through good customer service and being
very transparent," Barnett says.

Contact: John Barnett, City of Greeley, (970) 350-
9780, john.bametttip greelevgov.com. lEI

There are several strategies that downtown
leaders can implement to, "ensure local busi
nesses are reaping the benefits of this season
of gift-giving and celebrating," says Emily

"Help local businesses connect,
collaborate, and feel empowered
to establish creative marketing

Encouraging customers to shop small and
shop local is critical to the economic wellbe
ing of city centers, and even more so during
the winter holidays. Last year, National Retail
Federation surveys estimated that the average
American consumer would spend $935.58

during the holidays on
gifts, food, and other sea
sonal items. Unfortunately,
the majority of respondents
planned to shop at large
department stores, discount
shops, and online, with

only 23 percent planning to shop at local or
small businesses.

tactics."

ECONOMIC GROWTH

Seven Shop Local tips

A steady flow of information
paves the way

"We have done our best not to surprise
anybody," Barnett says. "The community
outreach part is just as important as the techni
cal part. Stakeholders include community
members, staff, elected officials, and the same
strategy won't work for all of them. You have
to develop a strategy for each of these groups
so that you are not constantly at their doorstep
wanting input but that allows them to have
opportunities for input."

The city used e-blasts, its social media
platforms, and old-fashioned face-to-face
communication to drive stakeholders to the
Imagine Greeley website. "We created a
road show, which we presented to 15 or 20
groups, steering them to the website," says
Barnett. "We knew at the very beginning we
needed to have an interactive website. We will
keep it up, by the way. The plan is going to



7December 2017 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com

creation of 10 murals, but ultimately, of the 78
applications, 20 artists were selected to paint
15 murals, "so a couple of them were partnered
up," he says.

The artists received a compensation
package which included both a stipend and
some essential training. Because some of
the murals would be very large, every artist
received lift operator certification to meet
Occupational Safety and Health Administra
tion standards. Each artist was provided with
free travel and accommodations, and received

program. Since that time, an additional $30,000
has been raised via Patronicity, and several
hundreds of thousands of dollars in grants and
donations, both cash and in-kind, have been
received from corporations, small businesses,
labor unions, and civic organizations.

The mural festival struck a chord with
artists as well as funders. An RFP for artists
was issued in April, and, "we did some per
sonal outreach to top local talent, just to make
sure we were matching the cultural identity of
Lynn," says Wilson. The group had publicized

Mural event draws crowds -Continuedfrompagel

online site where local businesses can adver
tise and sell their items, suggests Robbins.
Celebrate Local is an organization and online
shop for artisans and makers from all across
Ohio. Customers have access to over 300 local
shops selling everything from salsa to soap to
stickers made with home grown products and
ingredients. "Social media is also a great way
to help market local businesses," she writes.
Shops in West Hollywood, CA, are encouraged
to submit photos of their decorated storefronts
to the local chamber of commerce's Instagram
account as a way to spread holiday cheer and
attract customers, for example.

Donate items from local small busi
nesses. During this season of giving,
encourage customers to shop local for items
they intend to donate to local charities.
"Donating items from local stores is a win
win for the local economy and for helping
neighbors in need," writes Robbins.

Buy local, celebrate local. "What would
the holidays be without an office holiday cel
ebration? Organizations, and their members,
can be encouraged to show support for local
small businesses by, "serving your favorite
local coffee and placing a catering order with a
local food truck," she says. -

campaign for locally-made goods. New Haven,
CT, Mayor Toni Harp recently collaborated
with local artists and businesses to develop a
Made in New Haven logo, for example.

Host a holiday event with pop-up shops
featuring local retailers. "A holiday-themed
market or event in your city's downtown area
is a wonderful placemaking strategy, and also
gives local retailers the chance to share their
goods and services with the community,"
writes Robbins. In Roanoke, VA, for example,
The Dickens of a Christmas events on Friday
evenings in December include a tree lighting,
pet costume parade, and local vendors selling
food and gifts.

Share resources for businesses about the
holiday shopping season. The holiday season
usually means a surge in new customers, and
particularly for newer businesses, it's important
to make sure this isn't a missed opportunity,
Robbins says. To help local shops prepare for
the season, New York City's Small Business
Services office shares holiday tips for busi
ness owners, including how to recruit and hire
seasonal help and how to participate in holiday
markets and events.

Market local businesses through an
online store or social media. Join forces with
other cities in your region or state to build an



Downtown Idea Exchange· www.DowntownDevelopment.com • December 2017

More art to come
In addition to the new murals, Beyond

Walls is in the process of installing vintage
neon business signs, dynamic LED lighting in
underpasses, and a unique sculpture.

Before vintage neon business signs could
be installed, city officials had to be convinced
that these pieces, which had been in storage
for 30 years, were art rather than violations of
municipal signage ordinance. The collection
represents former businesses from Lynn, from
Boston, and from as far away as San Fran
cisco. Three of the dozen signs were installed
this summer, with the rest expected to be done
before winter.

LED light installations will address con
cerns about three poorly lit and underutilized
underpasses that cut through the city center,
Wilson says. "The underpass lighting is going
to be a pretty incredible install. This is a
dynamic system. We can do color washes. We
can do waves of green for St. Patrick's Day or
red, white, and blue for the Fourth of July. The
lights can respond to a train going by, or for
Central Square, which has a lot of live music,
the lights can respond to the beat of the music.
I don't think there's really anything like it in all
of New England," he says.

Beyond Walls anticipates completion of
this project by the end of the year. "We will do
lighting ceremonies and make it a big party,"
says Wilson.

There is also an area downtown where a
slab had been poured for a sculpture, "and then
the city just never had the finances to commis
sion artists," says Wilson. "So we asked GE,
who produced the first jet engine in Lynn in
1942, for a complete example of that engine."
The company agreed. The engine will be fitted
for installation by local vocational high school
students, and will be placed next spring.

Contact: Alfred Wilson, Beyond Walls. (617) 276-
5542. beyondwallslvnntis gmail.com. lEI

"It was a huge celebration," says Wilson.
"We got all of our federal, state, and local
delegation up on stage. We had our other art
institutions on stage. We had a key ceremony
- every artist received a letter from the mayor
and a city key."

8

a $1,000 stipend, and a $450 prepaid Visa card.
Downtown businesses would have been willing
to donate gift certificates, Wilson says, but,
"we didn't want local parties giving away stuff
to our artists. We wanted our artists spending
money to benefit our local businesses."

The "unsung heroes" of the festival are the
building owners that gave permission to use
their exterior walls as canvases, says Wilson,
and the businesses housed in those buildings,
which often had huge pieces of machinery in
their parking lots during the process. "For those
businesses, this really impacted their ability to
function for 10 days, and they bought in in a
big way, so that was their donation to the proj
ect," Wilson says.

A series of events was scheduled throughout
the lO-day festival. In addition to watching art
ists work, the public could attend yoga with the
artists, meet the artists at museums, and attend
presentations such as The History of Ameri-
can Graffiti. Events were heavily promoted on
social media, and a PR firm was also hired, "as
well as purchased advertising online in what we
believed were strong entities for 20-somethings
and 30-somethings," says Wilson.

The Rock the Block grand finale featured
four bands, including a marching band that led
the crowd through the cultural district and past
many of the murals before leading them back to
the celebration where a different OJ performed
every hour, live art installations were underway,
and food trucks and a local brewer provided
dining and drink options.



9December 2017 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com

about downtown events and restaurants, what
motivates them to come downtown, and what
barriers prevent that from happening more
frequently.

Feedback from residents of Scottsdale, as
well as from Phoenix (roughly half an hour's
drive) and Tucson (roughly two and a half
hour's drive), revealed that people rely most
heavily on word of mouth to learn about
Scottsdale's downtown events, followed

The city of Scottsdale, AZ (est. pop.
217,385), is exploring ways to grow spe
cific areas of the downtown, drive more foot
traffic, and better market the area overall.
Marketing firm HAPI is creating a new cam
paign for the downtown that will include a
new logo, website, color palette, ads, posters,
and more.

The first step was a brand perception
study which looked at how consumers learn

ATTRACTION

Study reveals motivations and barriers
to downtown visits

The new zoning is paying off. "Two
mixed-use projects have received the VHDZ
tax abatement in Tigard," says Dylan Dekay
Bemis, the city's economic development
coordinator. The Adrian is a 12,OOO-square
foot mixed-use project featuring office space,
eight high-end apartments, and a rooftop
garden.

And Attwell Off Main adds 1,819 feet of
commercial space and 165 market-rate apart
ments to the city center. Options range from a
studio to one-to-three bedroom apartments to
six two-story townhomes. The development,
located close to retail and restaurants, the city
library, and public transit, is expected to bring
300 new residents downtown. Additionally,
the project should generate $7.8 million in
property taxes over 20 years, though some
of those will be forgiven under the VHDZ
program. The remainder of the taxes will be
reinvested in additional downtown revitaliza
tion projects, says the city.

Contact: Dylan Dekay-Bemis, City of Tigard,
(503) 718-2560, dylanb@tigard-or.gov. m

In 2014, the city of Tigard, OR (est. pop.
48,035), introduced a new Vertical Hous-
ing Development Zone that it hoped, when
bundled with other tools such as Tax Incre
ment Financing, would encourage mixed-use
development in targeted areas, including the
downtown.

The Vertical Housing Development
Zone offers qualified projects a 20 percent
per floor tax exemption on new residential
development for the first four residential
floors, when that development is built above
nonresidential space.

"Financial modeling shows that a verti
cal housing based tax exemption moves
some multi-story mixed-use projects from
the red to the black," said former Economic
Development Manager Lloyd Purdy when
the program was announced.

The city believes that this mix of activ
ity improves property values, the viability
of local businesses, and the quality of life
for residents while also diversifying housing
options.

ECONOMIC GROWTH

Vertical development zone encourages
mixed-use projects



Downtown Idea Exchange· www.DowntownDevelopment.com • December 201710

Respondents were allowed to make multiple selections for this question; therefore, the percentages do not add up to IOO%.

:'~~ --11\1,1', "7'ni-~"¥~(ifiCally'iiIff"dirig Information about restaurantsin
JQ _, >:,', ,..~'".,_~~~ ~ ~~es of information do you rely upon
~Ill;)'_ ':.;'..~~..' . <•• _:~.~ • " : c _'.:, , Phoenix Scottsdale Tucson
Word of mouth 40% 56% 34%
Yelp 23% 40% 27%
Search engines (Google, Yahoo, Bing, etc.) 32% 23% 35%
Specific restaurant websites 17% 16% 16%
Social Media (Facebook, Instagram, Twitter, etc.) 25% 15% 23%
TripAdvisor 15% 13% 23%
OpenTable 11% 13% 12%
Arizona Republic 17% 11% 8%
AzCentraI.com 11% 10% 6%
Area websites (ExperienceScottsdale.com, DowntownScottsdale.com, etc.) 11% 8% 17%
Phoenix New Times 18% 8% 5%
Magazines (Trends, Scottsdale Lifestyle, Phoenix Magazine, etc.) 16% 13% 10%
Other 2% 1% 6%

Why visit downtown?
Motivations for visiting downtown were

explored by age group. The variety of restau
rants was most important to all respondents, but
became increasingly so in older demographics.
Walkability also gained in importance as ages
increased, and the number of galleries was also
slightly more important to older visitors.

Conversely, nightlife options and a
"lively, energetic vibe" were more important
to younger visitors than to seniors, as was
the diversity of people. A safe environment
and a variety of shopping opportunities were
nearly equal in importance across age groups,
while the number of major festivals and events
motivated more people ages 40 to 65 than those
younger or older.

Parking was seen as a barrier to visiting
downtown across all age segments. About a
third of respondents across all ages saw down
town as too expensive. Many also said it was
too crowded, and some, especially younger
respondents, perceived a "snooty or arrogant
attitude in others." Yet very few respondents
cited unfriendly workers in shops and restau
rants as an issue. Other barriers mentioned to
a lesser degree, and more by younger respon
dents than retirees, included a lack of diversity
and public transportation in the city center. m

closely by social media. Scottsdale residents
rely more heavily on the local newspaper
than on Internet search engines, while the
reserve is true for those living in the other
two cities. Lifestyle magazines, the city web
site, and downtown/tourism websites played
a lesser, but still significant role in alerting
residents of all three cities of Scottsdale's
downtown events. And while still making the
list, user review websites, email newsletters,
and radio advertising were the least utilized
modes of communication around downtown
events.

The same did not hold true when it came
to information about restaurants, however.
While word of mouth still ranked first,
consumer review site Yelp, Internet search
engines, and restaurant websites are also
information sources that these consumers rely
on heavily. Social media was less important
to locals than consumers from the other two
cities, perhaps because they are more familiar
with downtown's dining scene. Trip Advi-
sor reviews were most heavily relied upon in
Tucson while two regional newspapers held
more sway in Phoenix. To a lesser degree,
lifestyle magazines and downtown/tourism
websites also informed prospective diners of
their options.

To view the Downtown
Scottsdale Brand
Perceptions Presentation
in its entirety, visit our
website and click on
Web Extras.

DowntownDevelopment.com



11

~ MAIL: 36 Midvale Road,Suite 2E
Mountain Lakes,NJ07046

~ FAX: (973) 402-6056 ;
V PHONE: (973) 265-2300 i

@ EMAIL: info@DowntownDevelopment.com :
* North America, $227. Elsewhere, $257 I
(includes intern~_~I~~~Ict:h,,!.~ ~ . _

N15EMAIL

PHONE

CITY ZIP
-----.--~--~~~

STATE

ADDRESS

I TITLE
I

NAME

Please start/renew my one-year
subscription to Downtown Idea
Exchange for $227.*

ISSN 0012-5822

Downtown
Idea Exchange
A publication of the

Downtown Development Center

36 Midvale Road, Suite 2E
Mountain Lakes, NJ 07046

Phone: (973) 265-2300' Fax: (973) 402-6056
Email: info@DowntownDevelopment.com
Website: www.DowntownDevelopment.com

Editor
Sheila Grant. ext. 110

sgrant@DowntownDevelopment.com

Technical Editor
Laurence A. Alexander

Customer Service
Mary Pagliaroli. ext. 101

mpagliaroli@DowntownDevelopment. com

Reprints and Permissions
Michael DeWitt. ext. 107

mjdewitt@DowntownDevelopment.com

Publisher
Margaret DeWitt, ext. 106

msdewitt@DowntownDevelopment.com
Downtown Idea Exchange® is published monthly by
the Downtown Development Center. The Center
provides news, information and data for successful
downtown revitalization through its newsletters. books.
r,.nnrt~ "nnw,.h~it,.

') Alexander Communications Group
• © 2017 Alexander Communications
Group, Inc. All rights resen:ed. No part of this pub

i lication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval
! system, or transmitted in any form or by any means,
electronic, mechanical, photocopying or otherwise,
without the prior written permission of Alexander
Communications Group.

December 2017 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com

Development Authority
works to keep best parking
spots for customers

In October a new kind of
Ambassadorwas on the streets of
downtown Holland, MI. Shonett
Davisis the Downtown Parking
Ambassador.According to the
Downtown Development Authority,
Davisis responsible for, "educating
all stakeholders about appropriate
'Customer First' parking, making

Video series to promote
downtown's small
businesses

The ScottsdaleArea Chamber of
Commerce in partnership with the
City of Scottsdaleeconomic devel
opment department is embarking
on a new program to, " bring more
value and awarenessof local small
business in the community." The
program will feature unique small
businessesin brief gO-secondvideos
which will be part of the Downtown
Spotlight Video Series.

'The focus will be on the
uniqueness of their businesses,the
importance of shopping locally,and
why they chooseto call Scottsdale
home," said Chamber of Commerce
President and CEO,Mark Hiegel.

In order to participate, small
businesseswere asked to complete
a brief online application form.
Theymust also agree to participate
in socialmedia promotion of their
video and of other Spotlight videos.

To see the proposed format
for the video, featuring
Sip Coffee & Beer, visit
DowntownDevelopment.com
and click on Web Extras.

Attracting and retaining
government offices

In the Downtown RoanokeInc.
2016workplan, one of many stra
tegic initiatives involves retaining
existing government functions and
attracting others to the Virginia city.

A three-step processguides
the way:

• Maintain relationships with
"decision makers"at various levelsof
government to secure future support
for downtown locations/relocations
of government offices.

• In cooperation with major
regional partners, advocate for the
optimal location of city and local
divisions of state and federal govern
ments within downtown.

• Continue monitoring a data
baseof relevant government
agenciesand their leasestatus in
order to position DRIas an advocate
for their relocation or retention at
the appropriate time.

Transforming an
austere plaza

A "concrete breaking ceremony"
marked the beginning of renova
tions to Patriot Plazain downtown
Towson, MD.The concrete, pavers,
and a central fountain will be
replacedwith 1.8acresof green
space.Additional improvements
include seatingwalls, plantings, light
ing, and new furnishings.

In addition to creating a more
welcoming area, NancyHafford of
the TowsonChamber of Commerce
tells the Baltimore Sun that the
redesigned plazawill also provide
opportunities for more downtown
eventswith fewer street closings.

Idea



Downtown Idea Exchange· www.DowntownDevelopment.com • December 2017

Bike patrols offer a
new perspective

In an effort to make police offi
cers more visible and more mobile,
the city of Loveland, CO,added bike
patrols in early fall. The Reporter
Herald says that the 14 newly trained
officers will, "circulate the streets
and alleyways of downtown, as well
as the neighboring bike paths, in
order to combat common criminal
offenses including open drinking,
loitering, vandalism, theft, threaten
ing behavior, and drug use." m

pants purchase a souvenir cookie tin
and a map of over 45 participating
shops and restaurants. At each busi
ness participants receive a wrapped
cookie, candy, or other specialty
baked good to add to their tins.

Shannon Williams, executive
director for Downtown Oak Park,
says that she encourages merchants
to have other things going on inside
their businesses on the day of the
cookie walk, and cautions them
that this may not be a big sales
day, but is great outreach to future
customers.

Construction sparks creative downtown marketing
When a three-month bridge construction project slowed traffic to and

from downtown Glenwood Springs, CO,local businesses,the city, and the
Glenwood Springs Chamber ResortAssociation joined forces to draw visi
tors downtown.

The effort includes the "Detour to Relaxation,"a traditional punch card
promotion. After receiving punches from five participating businessesand
restaurants, the card is good for a day pass to relax in the mineral waters of
the Iron Mountain Hot Springs.

The local Post Independent notes that Detour to Relaxation isjust one of
several promotions being offered during construction:

"Soon after the detour went into effect in mid-August, Alpine Bank
got on board sending its team of bank executives out to lunch at different
placesaround Glenwood where they are picking up the tab for random
customers.

''The chamber also has its Treasure Hunt 2017 - A Bridge to Riches
campaign underway, where people follow weekly clues to locations around
town for the chance to win a $1,000 prize packageafter the detour is over.

"Individual businesses are also getting into the act with different dis
count deals, special promotions and, in some cases,more favorable hours."

The chamber promotes the special offers via weekly email blasts, as
well as digital marketing on glenwoodchamber.com, and social media posts
on Facebook.

12

Sweet treats draw customers
during holiday season

In Oak Park, IL,the annual cookie
walk drew crowds into downtown
stores this month. The cookie walk
began as part of the annual Winter
fest nearly a decade ago, but quickly
became the signature event. Partici-

Collecting opinion data
As public and private groups

seek to bring the voice of the com
munity to critical decisions, the range
of survey tools and techniques has
blossomed. The National Research
Center, a for-profit firm specializing
in public sector research, outlines six
useful techniques in a recent blog
post. These include: Citizen survey
panels, resident network apps such
as NextDoor, Opt-in Web surveys,
Recruited Web surveys, Texted sur
veys, and Matrix sampling. To learn
more visit www.n-r-c.com/new-ways
collect-opinion-data-residents.

sure that downtown Holland's most
convenient parking spaces remain
available to customers, while direct
ing employees to the closest available
public parking lots."

While she does not issue tickets,
Davis does patrol assigned areas and
issue, "educational tickets for possible
violations."

The Holland Sentinel notes that
the position grew out of a 2016
parking study that found "employee
abuse" of parking spaces intended
for customers. In response, the city
added some 15-minute parking
spaces and new signage in addition to
hiring Davis.

Idea Exchange



© 2018 Alexander Communications Group, Inc. All rights reserved.

The events target young profes
sionals from the neighboring state
of Illinois, and provide not only
job, but quality-of-life and hous
ing information meant to lure new
employees to St. Charles and its
thriving downtown.

"It is an outreach program, yes,
but as far as I'm concerned, it is first
and foremost a business retention
program," says Leezer. "St. Charles

(Continued Oil page 7)

The new Discover Your Future
Career & Lifestyle Day events go
"far beyond the traditional work
force job fair," says David Leezer,
director of economic development in
St. Charles, MO (est. pop. 65,794).
The strategy has both short- and
long-term goals that include attract
ing new talent to live and work in
the city, attracting new businesses,
and retaining the area's existing
businesses.

ECONOMIC GROWTH

Event aims to attract talent and
retain businesses

ture investment. There's already been
over $194 million invested since
2005, and right now we have another
$800 million recently completed or
under construction. We felt it was
time to implement some initiatives
in the public right-of-way to draw
people back to Wisconsin Avenue."
The major initiatives include:

• Sculpture Milwaukee, a tempo
rary outdoor exhibit of 22 sculptures
by both internationally renowned and
local artists, was on display along
Wisconsin Avenue from June through

(Continued on page 3)

To highlight its main thorough
fare, the Milwaukee Downtown BID
#21 declared 201 7 to be The Year of
Wisconsin Avenue. Several public
arts initiatives, a big media push, a
walking tour, and more aim to bring
pedestrians back to "the living room
of our downtown, city, and region,"
says Beth Weirick, CEO.

"The goals, overall, were to
enhance walkability and to create
a sense of place along Wisconsin
Avenue," says Weirick. "We have
16 major properties that have been
heavily engaged in major infrastruc-

ATTRACTION

Multi-pronged approach puts
more feet on a main street

@DowntownDevelopment.com
Full Forward Business

Competition documents

UniverCity Neighborhood
Partnership brochure

Discover Your Future e-book
and video

Idea Exchange. Ten things
residents want, Chefs and
farmers team up, and
more 11

Alley project cleaner,
safer, and less costly. Con
solidating trash collection
is awin-win 10

Rooftop parks attract city
center visitors. Provide ame
nities and event space ••••• 5

Program preserves in-town
residential neighborhoods.
A mix of rentals and single
family homes is essential ••• 6

Digital sign provides tran
sit information, ad space,
more. The new "community
bulletin board" to be installed
in several cities .•••..•.•.• 9

Vol. 65, No.1
January 2018

Inside this issue
Business competition
attracts "second-location"
retailers. Experienced mer
chants mean faster start-up,
better chance of success ••. 2



Downtown Idea Exchange· www.DowntownDevelopment.com • January 20182

publicized heavily via social media, but 1,000
fliers were also mailed out to prospective busi
ness owners statewide. Contestants could enter
online or mail applications to the DOC office.

One winning entry received $20,000 in cash
for expenses related to opening a new retail
location, including renovation, fixture pur
chase, inventory, and marketing. Additionally, a
$30,000 Tenant Up-fit Grant was offered to help
pay for electrical, plumbing, HVAC, floor cov
ering, walVceiling improvements, permanent
fixtures, lighting, and other qualifying building
renovations.

Other assistance for the winner included a
$500 signage grant, a $500 design grant, and
a $300 credit toward the first year's business
license from the city, as well as special lease
incentives offered by the selected property
owner.

In return, the winner was obligated to
execute at least a three-year lease at a property
of their own choosing in the Downtown Flor
ence Historic District, and had to be open by
November 1. The DOC provided a list of avail
able properties and assisted with site selection.

"We thought 15 or 20 applications would
be great," says Sager. "We didn't know what
to expect. We got 36 applications." A commit
tee was formed to "whittle down" the list to
five semi-finalists. In mid-July, notifications
were mailed to those not selected as finalists,
along with information about the city's incen
tives and an invitation to meet with Sager to,
"discuss these programs and further explain
how these incentives may be the assistance you
need to open your business downtown.

"We think three to five of these other
people are ultimately going to end up opening
businesses down here," says Sager. "That was
the case in Hartsville, so we knew going into
this it was as much about marketing as it was
about filling one spot. But of the 1,000 letters
we sent out, I don't think we got one response.
It was Facebook, the newspaper, and word of
mouth."

A panel of judges, including representa-

The Full Forward Downtown Business Contest supported
expansion for two existing business owners while also
broadcasting available incentives to others.

l ~ ... . .._..__..._.. J

_»",,~Th.;>f,,;\ FOfV..';)rdDowntown Bus.ress Contest (FFDBC) IS

. des-coed to attract new compatible businesses to the
bccnunq Downtown Florence. SC histone district

> FFDBC is open to 01)1current ~E'!Zldbus-cesso"me's tha!
h:t....e tJeen cont.nvcostv »peeat.nq 3 bus-ness for at least
12months

THE DETAILS

SUBMITONLINE ATWWW.FlORENCEDOWNTOWN COM
:: '-' L _ -~' ~

IN CASH TOWARDS THE COST OF OPENING
A NEW LOCATION IN DOWNTOWN FLORENCE

The Full Forward Business Competition
in Florence, SC (est. pop. 37,056), is attracting
new retail to the city center. "We heard about
a similar process in Hartsville [SC] where
they held a Startsville competition to attract
startups," says Bob Sager, a retail recruit-
ment consultant for the Florence Downtown
Development Corporation. An outline of that
competition was obtained in late March, but,
"we didn't have enough time, based on the
timeframe of that event, to do it this year, and
we wanted to get somebody in for the holiday
season," he says.

To realize a faster turnaround, the competi
tion was adapted to attract already-successful
business owners to open a second location or
new business venture in the downtown. "We
were pretty sure the startup time would be
much shorter, and because contestants already
had a business, they were more likely to be sue
cessful," says Sager.

The contest, which launched in May, was

ECONOMIC GROWTH

Business contest attracts "second-location" retailers



3January 2018 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com

Social media posts
indicate a high level of
public engagement.

To view the Full
Forward Business
Competition rules,
participant disclaimer,
mailer, application
form, and score sheet,
visit our website and
click on Web Extras.

DowntownDevelopment.com

future. A Request for Creativity invited art
ists working in all media to submit concepts
reflecting the avenue's history of commerce,
diversity of architecture and people, and its
"undoubtedly bright future."

Submissions were reviewed by a
Downtown Placemaking Task Force
which included property owners,
representatives from the arts commis
sion and public works departments, the local
electricity provider, and more. 'The team
short-listed the responses and conducted inter
views, then hired one artist to do all 10 utility
boxes," says Weirick. The public was invited
to watch some of the artwork being created,
and a ribbon cutting also helped promote the
new exhibit.

• The West Wisconsin Audio Walking
Tour, which rolled out in May, focuses on
public art and historical buildings, but also
touches on the forward momentum of the
area. Using the platform Otocast, the BID
highlights 14 points of interest, each with its
own distinct narrator. "It really talks more

October. Milwaukee is one of only a handful
of cities to host a free, urban installation of this
magnitude, says the BID. Sculptures ranged in
size, with some reaching 40 feet in height.

"Over 100 individuals participated in the
committee structure for Sculpture Milwaukee,"
Weirick says. This included a steering commit
tee, logistics committee, art selection committee,
education committee, marketing and events
committee, and a fund development committee.

"We had people from all spectrums," says
Weirick. "Everyone played a role, which made
it feel like a community-wide project. We
reached out through art museum docents to area
school teachers, and found funding to provide
docent tours for school children, and to pay
for their transportation. This needed to be an
initiative for a cross section of the generations.
The message to the rest of the world is that
Milwaukee has an appreciation for the arts, and
how significant the arts are to creating quality
of life."

• Utility Box Murals along the avenue saw
new artwork depicting the past, present, and

Multi-pronged approach puts more feet
on a main street -Continuedfrompage 1

"We were really looking for retail because
we had open storefronts," says Sager, noting
that several service industry businesses also
applied, including event planners and caterers.
"We got just about anything you could imagine
- a gift shop, a flower shop, ladies' wear - it
was pretty varied."

And because the winner was not a local
and several local business owners who have
worked toward the betterment of downtown
for years were entered into the competition,
a second-place prize was created, awarding
$10,000 in cash and $30,000 in grant money to
the highest-scoring local business owner.

Contact: Bob Sager, Florence Downtown Devel
opment Corporation. (843) 407-/512. bob@
florencedowntown. com. IilEI

tives from the chamber of commerce, a local
bank, and the business community was selected
to choose one winner. Finalists did presenta
tions before the panel, and provided business
plans. Each was scored based on criteria that
included the impact of the business on the
downtown, the financial strength of the busi
ness plan, the job/revenue impact, and the
applicant's level of investment.

"They voted, and we stayed out of it," says
Sager. The winner already owns two success
ful women's clothing businesses with different
concepts in other South Carolina locations.
At the new downtown Florence location, both
concepts will be blended, with one being dis
played in each of the large storefront windows
to either side of the entrance.

I



Downtown Idea Exchange· www.DowntownDevelopment.com • January 2018

Contact: Beth Weirick, Milwaukee Downtown
BID #21, (414) 220-4705, bweirickte
milwaukeedowntown.com. lEI

to resemble keys, both to raise aware-
ness about the community's quality-of-life
programs and to collect donations. Online
donations are also accepted. Additional Key
to Change meters, capable of accepting both
coins and bills, will be installed next year.
Funds are used for a Downtown Homeless
Outreach Coordinator to work on the front
lines, canvassing the streets to help individu
als find suitable housing, as well as for the
Housing First Endowment Fund, which helps
the chronically homeless find permanent sup
portive housing, and for Move-In Kits which
include household essentials for new resi
dents in the Housing First Program.

The Year of Wisconsin Avenue "has been
a really successful campaign for us," says
Weirick. "We received over $600,000 in PR
from local media." Additionally, social media
posts indicate a high level of public engage
ment with the various public art initiatives,
she says.

"Much of the success, and why we saw
the levels of traffic that we did, was that
there was something for everyone," Weirick
says. While the utility box project appeals
on a grassroots level, art aficionados were
drawn to the temporary sculpture display,
and the walking tour has educational, health
ful, and social components. "We learned
through social media that there was a group
of employees bringing their lunch, putting on
their tennis shoes and walking the avenue to
look at the sites on the audio tour," she says.
"It was a call to action to engage people in
that space."

Broad public engagement is a must for
this type of initiative, Weirick says. "It has to
be reflective of your community. Go through
the work of engaging your property owners,
the philanthropic community, the education
community. We did this holistically, and
everyone was proud to take ownership. They
all felt they played a role and were an agent
of change in bringing attention and love back
to Milwaukee's main street."

4

Key to Change meters collect donations
that support programs for the homeless.

Promoting quality of life for all
While most of the initiatives aim to

increase foot traffic, the Key to Change
initiative launched in late summer is intended
to assist chronically homeless individuals.
"To us, Key to Change is critical because
we wanted to message, as we are going

through this process of
enhancing and beauti
fying the area, that we
believe in quality of life
for all," says Weirick.
"Our intention is to
reeducate the commu
nity on effective ways
to help our citizens with
mental health and sub
stance abuse issues, and
those struggling with
chronic homelessness."

Seven parking
meters were retrofitted

about the character and the vibe and the sto
ries of the buildings," says Weirick. "We did
a nice, deep dive, but it's also succinct and to
the point. It engages pedestrians to learn a bit
more and be emotionally connected."

While the intent is for this to be a walking
tour, the free app can also be downloaded and
heard from anywhere via iTunes and Google
Play. "During the first three months, there
were over 2,500 downloads," Weirick says.

• To make Wisconsin Avenue more
accessible, VISIT Milwaukee's Trolley
Loop introduced a new route and expanded
hours. The reconfigured 30-minute Hop n'
Shop, Wine ri' Dine loop offered IS-minute
headways, and traveled much of the avenue
each Thursday through Sunday from June 1
through the end of August.

• In 2016, the BID and its project partners
issued an RFP for its Lighting the Avenue ini
tiative, which will bring experimental lighting
to the main thoroughfare, to "add to the ambi
ance," says Weirick. The group had hoped to
have the lighting installed this year, but infra
structure issues first needed to be resolved. A
vendor has been selected and several lighting
concepts are currently under review.



5January 2018 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com

The new transit station rooftop park will include a dozen
gardens, hundreds of trees, and plazas and grassy areas
for public enjoyment.

been hearing requests for the past 20 years
for public access to green space on top of the
building.

Retail heavyweight Macy's is considering
the addition of public park space on the roof of
its flagship Herald Square store in New York
City, according to the New York Post.

"As part of a strategy to attract more shop
pers and make its stores more exciting, Macy's
brass are considering plans to develop the
rooftop of its massive 2.2 million-square-foot
34th Street store, adding restaurants and open
green space, including trees and benches," the
Post reported in June.

'That store is getting more valuable by the
day as the center of gravity in Manhattan shifts
southwest to Hudson Yards," Doug Sessler,
vice president of real estate for Macy's, tells
the Post. The rooftop idea is meant to encour
age people to meander through the store either
on their way up or down from the attractions on
the roof, he says.

Downtown leaders looking for more green
space or more unique public space may want
to look up. Recently completed and under
construction public space is being added to
rooftops in several cities. Proponents say that
additional space for events and relaxation,
sky-high views, and programming will attract
more visitors downtown while also enhancing
quality of life for residents and employees.

The first elevated public park in Phila
delphia, PA (est. pop. 1,526,006), opened in
late 2015. Cira Green, in the University City
district of the city, is located 95 feet above
street level atop a parking garage. The 1.25-
acre park affords visitors "pretty incredible
views of Philadelphia's ever-evolving skyline
in multiple directions," says website UWIS
HUNU. In addition to recreation space, the
park has a built-in stormwater management
system, and trees, shrubs, and grasses to help
alleviate environmental impacts of nearby
buildings.

Expansion of the Vancouver (BC, Canada,
est. pop. 2,135,201) Public Library's Central
branch, slated for completion next spring,
includes a public rooftop garden. The two top
floors of the building were former provin-
cial government office space. The expansion
is transforming 40,000 square feet into
additional publicly accessible library and
community spaces, and the rooftop garden,
reports the Daily Hive.

The garden will feature two large outdoor
terraces on the north and south sides. Some
food vending services will be available on
site, as well. Another 8,000 square feet will
become space where people can read, work,
or simply retreat from the busy city below,
says the Daily Hive. Programmed events such
as lectures, workshops, and community meet
ings will also attract visitors to the park.

"People are very excited about the
garden," Chief Librarian Sandra Singh tells
the Daily Hive, adding that the library has

PATHWAYS AND PUBLIC SPACES

Parks don't have to be at street level
to attract city center visitors



Downtown Idea Exchange· www.DowntownDevelopment.com • January 2018

"but now we use the general fund," says Hight
shoe. "We work with area lenders who offer us
discounted rates, and use the lender's money to
buy, and ours to do the rehab."

The city funds up to $50,000 of renova
tion per house, and then puts the homes on the
market for income-qualified buyers. Reno
vations are performed by local contractors
through a bid process. Home buyers pay the
original acquisition price for the home, plus
loan and carrying costs such utilities, mowing,
and snow removal accrued during city owner
ship. Renovation costs are not passed on to
homeowners as long as they retain ownership
of the property as their primary residence for
five years. Additionally, homes must be main
tained as affordable, owner-occupied housing
for 20 years. "When we get paid by the home
owner, we pay the bank back," says Hightshoe.

Over the past seven years, the city has
purchased 63 homes, and rehabbed and sold 58
of those. "We only buy about five a year now,"

6

To preserve the integrity of historically
residential neighborhoods, the city of Iowa
City, IA (est. pop. 67,862), and the University
of Iowa launched the UniverCity Neighborhood
Partnership Affordable Housing Program. The
goal of the program is to preserve and build
upon the unique character of residential neigh
borhoods adjacent to the city center and the
University, "by ensuring these neighborhoods
remain vital, safe, affordable, and attractive
places to live and work."

"Single-family duplex homes were being
purchased by landlords and turned into student
housing," says Tracy Hightshoe, the city's
neighborhood services coordinator. "We started
buying rental properties and rehabbing them to
sell as owner-occupied."

While everyone loves the students, Hight
shoe says, maintaining a balance between
rental and owner-occupied homes is essential.
In 2010, state grant funds were used to pur
chase and rehab the first 20 rental properties,

ECONOMIC GROWTH

Program preserves in-town residential
neighborhoods

well as plazas and grassy areas located on top
of the new Salesforce Transit Center, reports
NextCity.com.

The park, owned by the Transbay Joint
Powers Authority, will be programmed by
Biederman Redevelopment Ventures, which has
successfully created or revived several public
parks, including Bryant Park and Triangle
Park in New York City and Pioneer Park in
Seattle. Other than food purchases, everything
at the new park will be free. Programming
will include everything from face painting
booths and community festivals to free knitting
classes, reports Next City.

"A lot of the attraction will be the horticul
ture," Dan Biederman tells the San Francisco
Chronicle, praising the size of some of the more
exotic trees that have been installed on the roof.
The park is slated to open in March. m

City planning code drives
rooftop park development

In San Francisco, CA (est. pop. 805,235),
where city planning codes have required public
space in new downtown commercial build
ings since the 1980s, rooftop parks are more
plentiful. Local newspapers and websites often
feature round-ups of the best rooftop hang
outs, which offer panoramic views, and feature
tables, benches, planters, public art, fountains,
and more. One rooftop garden offers multiple
water features and grassy areas atop a parking
garage, for example.

Next spring, a new park will join the San
Francisco skyscape. Located atop the city's
new transit hub, the 5A-acre park is being
billed as one of the city's larger and more
spectacular rooftop spaces. The park will
include 12 gardens and more than 400 trees, as



7

To view the UniverCity
Neighborhood Part
nership brochure, visit
our website and click
on Web Extras.

DowntownDevelopment.com

January 2018 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com

from each other. Given that, I looked east to
the state of Illinois."

While business recruitment is the more
traditional role of an economic development
staffer, instead, "I'm trying to recruit people to
come to my town, to live here, work here, and
prosper here," Leezer says. "I chose Illinois
because, in the fall of 2016, Southern Illinois
University at Carbondale released a report that
said that over 50 percent of millennials and
GenXers want to leave the state. Given that, I
decided to go to Illinois and find those people
who. want to leave the state."

Two job fairllifestyle events were held in
towns with numerous colleges and universi
ties this year. The first, last spring, was held
in Effingham, IL, about 1.5 hours east of St.
Charles. The second, in October, was held in
Bloomington-Normal, IL, about three hours
to the north. Representatives from eight
businesses attended the first event; seven the
second, and in each case, they paid $500 to
participate, with the balance of the event costs
coming from the Department of Economic
Development's budget.

Casting farther afield for new talent
There is a workforce development office in

the city, "and they do great work," Leezer says.
"They do job fairs in St. Louis. But with just
our 2.7 -percent and everybody experiencing
low unemployment, all we are doing is stealing

is part of suburban St. Louis, and is located in
the fastest growing county in Missouri." Several
large employers in the area, mainly in the tech,
health, and aerospace industries, "all have the
same problem - the lack of workforce. The
great news about St. Charles County is that in
September, we had a 2.7-percent unemploy
ment rate. The bad news is also that we have a
2.7-percent unemployment rate," he says.

"My focus is retention, keeping my exist
ing businesses happy and fulfilled and wanting
to reinvest in the city," Leezer says. "If they are
concerned about workforce, I need to figure
out a way to help them out. It's no different
than if they had a street or sewer problem. It's
a problem that I have to address, so I am doing
something different to help my businesses
thrive and prosper in St. Charles."

Event aims to attract talent and
retain businesses - Continued from page 1

a washer/dryer hookup, so even though we'd
spent $50,000 on the rehab, we spent another
$15,000 [to install the appliance hookups]."

To create more impact with the program,
the city tries to cluster their purchases, and also
takes, "the wart of the neighborhood and turns
it into a quaint historic home," Hightshoe says.
'That gets us a lot of publicity, and we won a
Preservation at its Best award."

Outcomes of the program have been prom
ising. "We've had a lot more families move
back in, and we've seen increased attendance
at the elementary school," says Hightshoe.
"We've also seen neighbors who are not part of
the program start to upgrade their own homes,
as well."

Contact: TracyHightshoe. City of Iowa City, (319)
356-5244, tracy-hightshoeteiowa-city.org. m

Hightshoe says. "The council gives us about
$250,000 to rehab the five homes."

Lessons learned along the way include that
purchasing larger homes does not pay. "I would
look at the price, because we've learned that
with really large homes, you're losing money,"
she says. "You're paying a lot of money for
that property that the homeowner wouldn't.
And they are usually run down and cost a lot
more than $50,000 to rehab. I try to go smaller,
though it can be hard to find smaller homes in
this market. Ideally, our expenses are capped
at $200,000. If a house costs more than that to
purchase and fix, we don't buy it."

It's also good to avoid homes which lack
off-street parking, she advises. "And we did
make one mistake - I don't know why we
didn't check, but we bought one that didn't have



Downtown Idea Exchange· www.DowntownDevelopment.com • January 2018

Lessons learned for next time
Neither event was a home run, says Leezer,

"but both were really solid singles. While we
did not get the numbers I wanted, in Effingham
we had about 15 people, and of the J 5, three
of my companies hired somebody. In Bloom
ington-Normallast week, I had 20 people, but
of the seven companies that went, all but one
are ready to make an offer to somebody, which
includes my fire and police departments, so my
attendees were very happy. I wish I had gotten
more numbers, and we tried really hard to get
that. The bottom line is that if my companies
are happy with it, it doesn't matter what I think.
I just want them to feel they got a return on
their investment."

The economic development staff will be
meeting with each company for feedback early
in 2018, and more events will be scheduled. The
banner ads, which worked really well, will be
used again, as will direct outreach to colleges.
"I'll probably do a television ad of some type,"
says Leezer. "While we are focusing on GenX
and millennials, that's not the only thing we're
looking at. If someone is 50 and wants to come
down here, I'll take them - and they are more
likely to watch television ads than YouTube."

do was more of a Google-type ad campaign
where we have banner ads on different websites
such as Yahoo and Google, and when visitors
see the banner and click on it for a few seconds
and show interest, the ad follows them. So if
they next go to MSNBC, they will see that
banner. It keeps our program front and center
in their minds." A series of radio, television,
and newspaper interviews were also part of the
marketing strategy.

Direct outreach was also done to several
local colleges and universities. "We sent staff to
do local job fairs and to hand out information
in cafeterias to promote what we were doing
with these college kids," says Leezer. And in
Bloomington-Normal, "I personally emailed the
department chairs of the universities." Addition
ally, one university with strong law enforcement
and fire fighter programs was targeted, and
representatives of the St. Charles police and
fire departments attended the event to chat with
interested students.

Advertising, the venue, and refreshments
for the first event cost about $12,000, with the
second running closer to $15,000, Leezer says.
"The reason I required $500 was that if we
gave it for free, it could be valued at nothing. It
makes [participating businesses] commit emo
tionally to the program. If I didn't make them
commit, they could wake up that morning and
decide there was so much on their desks that
they would pass. But if they paid $500, they are
going," he says.

Participating business were provided with
a list of attendees, denoting when possible
the types of jobs each was most interested in
exploring. And companies with more than
one business location were not required to
push only their St. Charles jobs. While pre
registration was encouraged, walk-ins were
also welcome. "You could walk in, sign in, and
talk to the people you were interested in," says
Leezer. "We had one guy who spent four hours
there, and we had some that stayed for 15 or 20
minutes, did their thing, and walked out."

County workforce development repre
sentatives were also in attendance, providing
additional job opportunities beyond those
offered by the participating businesses. In
addition, representatives from the county
realtors association provided housing infor
mation, and the city's economic development
staff was on hand to tout the quality of life
in person, through printed materials, and by
directing visitors to the dedicated website,
www.growstcharles.com/Live-Work.aspx.

"There was also a long-term strategy to
this," says Leezer. "If you talk 'ro most indus
tries, they will tell you their number one asset
is their employees. If I can get the employees
down here to St. Charles, eventually those
companies will follow them to the city. When.
they see that we have the asset they are looking
for, and are continuing to grow that asset, they
will come here, also."

Both events were marketed through Face
book (free posts and paid ads), Twitter, and
LinkedIn. "We also had a contract with our
local cable provider," Leezer says. "It was kind
of interesting, because when I called and said
we wanted to do ads in Effingham, they said,
'No, you don't.' They said that what I should

8

To view the e-book,
and an introductory
Discover Your Future
video, as well as
industry-specific videos
from st. Charles, visit
our website and click
on Web Extras.

DowntownDevelopment.com



9January 2018 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com

and the CRA allows the company to utilize the
sign location free of charge in exchange for a
percentage of the advertising being devoted to
CRA messages.

The sign in Kendall Square is strategi
cally positioned in front of the outbound
T-stop, and provides commuters with real
time transit information. "Along with train
schedules, we are curating content featuring
local artists, memes we love, and neighbor
hood happenings," says Krafcik, noting that
the self-contained signs require only four bolts
to install and provide wireless connectivity as
well as public informa
tion. The sign functions
as a single unit and as a
network, linked together
through the company's
cloud-based content man
agement system.

Since its installation,
the Kendall Square sign
has also been used to post
help wanted ads, and to
conduct public engagement
experiments to see what
passing pedestrians best Soofa signs are becoming the digital
respond to in terms of text community bulletin board in Boston, Cam-
and graphics. bridge, Atlanta, and other U. S.cities.

The Cambridge Redevelopment Author
ity in Cambridge, MA (est. pop. 105,162), has
teamed up with technology company Soofa to
test what the partners say is the world's first
digital community bulletin board. The new
42-inch Soofa Sign was installed this fall in
Kendall Square, an area that sees more than
50,000 downtown employees daily. With thou
sands of tourists, students, and commuters also
passing through the area each day, part of the
CRA's mission is to provide clear messaging.

"Our team collaborates closely with the
CRA to test new features, communication, and
engagement strategies," says Ed Krafcik, Soofa's
director of partnerships, noting that solar-pow- .
ered "electronic paper" is an interesting new
format that the CRA was eager to explore.

"The CRA was interested in piloting new
community outreach tools for local organiza
tions and businesses in the heart of Kendall
Square, a global center of innovation for the
technology and biotechnology industries," says
CRA Executive Director Tom Evens. "We were
especially interested in expanding our avenues
for advertising public meetings and events
related to our redevelopment projects and other
city projects."

The cost of the signage was covered with
a barter of sorts. An agreement between Soofa

COMMUNICATION

Digital sign provides transit information, ad space,
and collects public engagement data

will be reduced, as well. The Effingham event,
which was the "beta test" was from 10 a.m. to
6 p.m. in hopes of capturing first, second, and
third shift workers. "That really didn't pan out
well," says Leezer. "So in Bloomington-Normal,
from 4 to 6 p.m. was networking, followed by
a reception with beer and wine from 6 to 8 p.m.
Honestly, next time, I will just do the reception
and make it two hours total."

Contact: David Leezer. City of St. Charles, (636)
949-323/, david.leezer@stcharlescitymo.gov. m

Facebook ads tended to reach older audi
ences, as well. "That older audience would see
the ads and contact their kids," says Leezer.
Two of the attendees in Effingham had driven
three hours to be there, at the urging of their
mothers, who had learned about the event on
Facebook, he says.

Advertising aimed at women may be more
of a focus in 2018, as will targeted outreach
to several military bases within a few hours'
drive of St. Charles. The hours of each event



Downtown Idea Exchange· www.DowntownDevelopment.com • January 2018

Laughlin. The owner agreed, so the option was
put before the city council. "We also surveyed
the business and property owners within the
block and received 1DO-percent positive feed
back," she says.

"We then put out to bid the project of
removing his old fence, adding a new fence
and gate, concrete slab with curbing for the
dumpster carts, and the addition of a solar
street light for safety," says Laughlin. "We
worked with the local trash collection company
to come up with a fair fee schedule for the
users of the block, and they all saw a reduction
in their rates by going from the tipper carts to
the consolidated collection area."

Fees are based on the square footage of a
building, occupancy type, and number of days
the business is open each week. "For example,
a bar that is 1,500 square feet, open seven days
a week is not charged the same as a bar of
1,500 square feet that is open only three days
a week, as the latter would accumulate less
trash," Laughlin says.

"With the removal of the tipper carts and
the new consolidated trash collection area
recessed off the alley, we were then able to do
an asphalt overlay down the alley, as well," she
says, which makes the area more walkable.

Contact: Cathy Laughlin, City of Elko. (775) 777-
7160. claughlin@elkocitynv.gov. IllII

10

to resolve issues in
the cluttered al/ey.

There was little room
came several tipper cart containers for
the trash collection from our local col
lection company, Elko Sanitation."

The alley was already congested,
with several utility poles and gas

meters protruding into the space. "Add 17
tipper carts and you have quite the obstacle
course to drive through," Laughlin says. "The
alley was always dirty with trash and weeds.
The asphalt was deteriorating, as well,"

With most properties within the block
built to the property line, there was little rooin
to resolve issues in the cluttered alley. For
tunately, one building near the center of the
block varied from this practice, with a small
vacant area facing the alley.

"I met with that property owner and
discussed the option of the city engaging in a
license agreement with him to occupy IO-feet
deep by 25-feet wide of the rear of his prop
erty for a central trash collection area," says

Improvements to a cluttered, deteriorat
ing alley in downtown Elko, NV (est. pop.
18,297), have not only made the area more
safe, attractive, and walkable, but saved
adjacent business owners money on trash col
lection rates, as well.

"Our downtown main central block has
several bars, as well as small businesses," says
Cathy Laughlin, city planner. "With those bars

PATHWAYS AND PUBLIC SPACES

Alley project cleaner, safer, and less costly

Soofa has three more spaces available for
communities wanting to participate in its early
adopter program piloting the new signage
technology. "Over the coming months, we will
have dozens of signs across Boston, Cam
bridge, Atlanta, and others to be announced,"
Krafcik says.

Contact: Tom Evans, Cambridge Redevelopment
Authority, (617) 492-6800, tevans@cambridgerede
velopment.org; Ed Krafcik, Soofa , (908) 295-4210,
edwardtissoofa.co. IllII

"We're spending countless hours on site
in Kendall testing different types of content
and counting how many people stop, how
many take action, and asking them why," says
Krafcik. "Thus far, the Internet high five has
been one of the most successful. Hundreds of
people have given the sign a high five."

The company also hopes to attract more
and different types of eye-catching advertising
for the sign as people become more familiar
with its capabilities.



11January 2018 • Downtown Idea Exchange • www.DowntownDevelopment.com

~ MAIL: 36 Midvale Road,Suite 2E
Mountain Lakes,NJ07046

'-I FAX: (973) 402-6056a PHONE: (973) 265-2300
@ EMAIL: info@DowntownDevelopment.com

i * North America, $227. Elsewhere, $257
i_ (includes~~ernatlo~il.1gelivery1_._ ~ ~_. . ~ _

EMAIL N15

PHONE

liPSTATECITY

_. -- -------~- ~ -~--- !

ADDRESS

--- ------ --- !
FIRM/ORGANIZATION

Ti'j-LT~---~---~---~----~ ---~------- i

NAME

Please start/renew my one-year
subscription to Downtown Idea
Exchange for $227.*

ISSNOO"-'~' ~:~~lh~i~~---I
A publication of the

Downtown Development Center

36 Midvale Road, Suite 2E
Mountain Lakes, NJ 07046

Phone: (973) 265-2300· Fax: (973) 402-6056
Email: info@DowntownDevelopment.com
Website: www.DowntownDevelopment.com

Editor
SheiLaGrant. ext. 110

sgrant@DowntownDevelopment. com

Technical Editor
Laurence A. Alexander

Customer Service
Mary Pagliaroli. ext. 101

mpagliaroli@Downtownlsevelopment.com

Reprints and Permissions
Michael DeWitt, ext. 107

mjdewitt@DowntownDevelopment.com

Publisher
Margaret DeWitt, ext. 106

msdewitt@DowntownDevelopment.com
Downtown Idea Exchange" is published monthly by
the Downtown Development Center. The Center
provides news, information and data for successful
downtown revitalization through its newsletters, books.
reports, and website.

() Alexander Communications Group
© 2018 Alexander Communications

Group. Inc. All rights reserved. No part of this pub
lication may be reproduced. stored in a retrieval
system. or transmitted in any form or by any means.
electronic. mechanical. photocopying or otherwise.
without the prior written permission of Alexander
Communications Group.

New amenities enliven
park

The focal point of an effort
to activate downtown Atlanta's
Woodruff Park is a new game
cart. The brightly-colored mobile
activity kiosk is filled with recre
ational supplies, from chess sets
and board games to whiffle balls
and Frisbees. Park staff, recreation
interns, and local volunteers main
tain the game cart's inventory and
assist park visitors with check-
ing out supplies to be used in the
gaming area on the gazebo or on
the park's main lawn.

"Thanks to Southwest's
generous Heart of the Community
grant, we were able to utilize com
munity feedback to bring ideas
to the park that can be enjoyed
by everyone," says A.l. Robin
son, president of Central Atlanta
Progress. "We believe that these
park improvements, including the

out about a quarter of the space,
where it will operate a smaller ver
sion of the original store.

Iconic department store
finds new life

While the flagship Lord &
Taylor department store in New
York City has been an
institution for over 100
years, Mark A. Cohen,
the director of retail
studies at Columbia
Business School, tells
the New York Times
that, "The department
store really is a dino
saur:' Enter a creative
arrangement for the
landmark building.

The store's parent
company will sell the
building and will rent

Safety, economic health, and
education/enrichment opportuni
ties are the top three things that
residents nationwide want in their
communities. That's according to
the NRC's 2016 review of data from
The National Citizen Survey which
includes input from over 500 cities
and 100,000 residents.

Next in order of importance are:
opportunities to interact with the
natural environment, strong image/
reputation, overall appearance,
strong sense of community, health
and wellness opportunities, ease of
physical mobility, and the quality of
the built environment.

To view a report on the data
with NRCVice President
Michelle Kobayashi, visit our
website and click on Web
Extras.

Ten things
residents want

r
Idea



12 Downtown Idea Exchange· www.DowntownDevelopment.com • January 2018

passports stamped and entered in a
prize drawing. Each location also
provides wine and food samples.
Desiree Freeland, the program coor
dinator' tells the Orlando Sentinel

that roughly 100 passports are turned
in each month. "It puts feet on the
street on a Wednesday night," she
says. "Everybody's getting out and
having a good time." IJI£I

Each month Downtown
Deland, the main street pro
gram in Deland, FL, hosts a
Wine, Women & Chocolate
event. Like many "girls night
out" events, the monthly
gathering aims to provide a
fun shopping experience
downtown.

The event includes monthly
themes such as Day of the Dead and
ugly Christmas sweater. Women
download a passport and visit par
ticipating businesses to have their

Monthly event
attracts women

The new advertising
campaign features Philadelphia-based "brand ambassadors" sharing their down
town stories and shopping experiences.

Ads appear in print media, bus shelters, car cards and digital screens on
Regional Rail,and LED.screensin downtown's Dilworth Park.They are supple
mented with content on social media and at ShopCenterCityPhilly.com, the
website for the campaign. .

At the site, Michele Waters, a downtown employee and one of the ambassa
dors, talks about her fashion style, favorite places to shop, eat, drink, and more.

Chefs and farmers
team up

The fifth annual FreshTaste
event in downtown Anderson
SC's Wren Park saw more
than 2,500 foodies descend on
the city in October. The event
pairs local farmers with chefs
who showcase their talents by
creating unique sample size
items for the event. This year
eight teams participated and
vied for recognition in the
people's choice awards. Local
artists, businesses, and musi
cians round out the festive
atmosphere.

FreshTaste is produced by
the city of Anderson and the
Anderson Area Farm and Food
Association.

Experiences drive shopping
In an effort to increase consumer spending in Center City, the Center City

District and Philadelphia Retail Marketing Alliance launched the Shop Center City
campaign.

In the spring of 2017, the District conducted a customer survey to gather
information on Center City shoppers, including their spending patterns and
shopping preferences.

"It was clear this was not an either/or choice between online and in-store
shopping. Survey respondents said that what they valued most about Center City
are experiences you cannot find anywhere else in the region or online," saysPaul
Levy,president & CEOof
the District. ''They liked
our walkability, diversity
of food, entertainment,
cultural offerings, and the
strong presence of local
shops. Seventy-nine per
cent of respondents noted
that while they shop
online, 76 percent simul
taneously shopped in
Center City,with around
30 percent frequenting a
regional maiL"

game cart, will generate a hub
of positive activity that adds
vibrancy to this iconic down
town greenspace."

Idea E


	01-25-18 Agenda.pdf
	10-26-17 Draft Minutes.pdf
	Item I.A. Direction Signage Program.pdf
	Item I.B. 2018-19 Budget.pdf
	Item I.C. Project #2 Centennial Park West Block End.pdf
	Downtown Idea Exchange - Nov 2017.pdf
	Downtown Idea Exchange - Dec 2017.pdf
	Downtown Idea Exchange - Jan 2018.pdf

